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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members
IIFL Wealth Finance Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twenty Fifth Annual Report on the business,
operation and state of affairs of IIFL Wealth Finance Limited {“the Company”) together with the
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019,

1. Background:

[IFL Wealth Finance Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of lIFL Wealth Management Limited
and is registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a systematically important non-banking
financial company not accepting public deposits (NBFC-ND-SI).

2. Financial Results - The highlights of the standalone financial results for the year under

review are as under:

Particulars 2018-2019* 2017-2018*
{INR in million) {INR in million)

Gross Total Income 7,097.04 7,703.56
Less: Expenditure 4,365.67 5,782.58
Profit /(Loss) Before Taxation 2,731.37 1,920.98
Less: Taxation - Current 896.03 515.00
- Deferred 20.26 (27.64)

- Short or Excess Provision of - -

Income Tax

Net Profit / (Loss) After Tax 1,815.08 1,433.62
Other Comprehensive Income {0.28) {0.33)
Total Comprehensive Income 1,814.80 1,433.29

* Figure are as per Indian AS

3. Review of Business and Operations:

During the year under review, the total income of the Company stood at INR 7097.04 million
as compared to INR 7,703.56 million in the previous year and the net profit after tax
increased to INR 1,815.08 million as compared to INR 1,433.62 million in the previous year.
Major highlights of the business and operations are as under:
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o loan book of the Company stood to INR 47,982.90 million as of March 31, 2019 as against
INR 67,011.05 million in the previous year;

s Capital Markets contributed to approx. 75.35% of loan book;

s Gross and Net NPAs (Non-performing assets) were NIL;

e Provision coverage on loans (including for standard assets) was INR 228.00 million as at

end of FY19.

4. Macroeconomic and Industry Overview:

Macroeconomic Overview —

Economic Growth — Slowing but with improving prospects

After averaging close to 8% through Q3 FY18 to Q1FY19, Indian economic activity lost speed.
The February 2019 release of the Central Statistics Office (CSO), read in conjunction with
high frequency indicators, suggests that the economy could have encountered a soft patch.
It revised India’s real gross domestic product (GDP) growth for FY19 downwards to 7.0% from
7.2% in the first advance estimates. Domestic economic activity decelerated for the third
consecutive quarter in Q3FY19 due to a slowdown in consumption, both public and private.

However, gross fixed capital formation {(GFCF) growth remained in double digits for the fifth
consecutive quarter in Q3, with the GFCF to GDP ratio rising to 33.1 per cent in Q3FY19
against 31.8 percent in Q3FY18, supported primarily by the government’s thrust on the road
sector and affordable housing. Also, some of the forward-looking surveys conducted by the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) indicate that consumer confidence has improved and business

expectations remain optimistic.

Moreover, aggregate flow of funds to the commercial sector from banks and non-banks
remains robust, led by strong growth in bank credit. Bank credit grew by 13.24%, and
deposits were up 10.03% in FY19 over FY18. While total financial flows from banking and
non-banking sources have improved, a durable strengthening of investment demand is yet
to take hold.

As per the RBI, there are some signs of domestic investment activity weakening as reflected
in a slowdown in production and imports of capital goods. The moderation of growth in the
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global economy might impact India’s exports. On the positive side, however, higher financial
flows to the commercial sector augur well for economic activity. Private consumption, which
has remained resilient, is also expected to get a fillip from public spending in rural areas and
an increase in disposable incomes of households due to tax benefits. Business expectations
continue to be optimistic. Taking into consideration the above factors, GDP growth for FY20
is projected at 7.2% — in the range of 6.8-7.1% in H1FY20 and 7.3-7.4% in H2FY20 — with risks

evenly balanced.
Inflation conditions benign

Inflation conditions have turned unusually benign under the impact of deflationary food
prices. Despite minor increases, overall trend has been to remain low over FY19. The annual
retail inflation rate rose in March 2019 to 2.8%, up from 2.57% in February 2019. However,
core inflation surprised pleasantly with a sharper-than-expected downtick. This is in line with
the RBI'S Q4FY19 inflation projections of 2.4%.

Factors which are underlying the inflation trajectory for FY20 range from the trend of falling
foed and fuel inflation, balanced by increased crude prices and price increase expectations
of households and businesses. Taking into consideration these factors and assuming a
normal monsoon in 2019, the path of CPl inflation is expected by RBI to be broadly 2.9-3.0%
in HIFY20 and 3.5-3.8% in H2FY20, with risks broadly balanced.

RBI repo rate stance

During FY19, the RBI Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) took multiple steps towards aligning
market interest rates through the repo mechanism in line with macroeconomic conditions,
inflation trajectory and need for addressing on-ground accessibility of affordable credit.
Starting the year at 6.00% the RBI increased the repo rate twice by 25 bps each time in June
and August 2018. In the MPC meeting of October 2018, RB! continued a status quo approach
but switched stance from neutral to calibrated tightening. The MPC’s decision was
conditioned by risks to inflation from volatile crude oil prices; rising input costs; fiscal
slippage concerns; uncertainty about the impact of minimum support prices {MSPs); the
staggered impact of the likely increase in house rent allowances by the states; and, the virtua!
closing of the output gap. In its December 2018 meeting, the MPC left the policy rate
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unchanged and retained the stance of calibrated tightening, although inflation projections

were revised downwards.

With Shaktikanta Das’ appointment to the RBI Governor role in December 2018, the market
had expectations of a pragmatic approach towards rate setting given the need to boost credit
growth and spur the economic trajectory. In its February 2019 meeting, the MPC decided to
reduce the policy repo rate by 25 bps to 6.25% unanimously in voting for switching its stance
to neutral from calibrated tightening. This decision was prompted by the continuous easing
of headline inflation, a stable crude oil price outlook and some moderation in cost pressures.
Headline inflation was projected to remain below the target of 4% over the coming four
quarters, which opened up space for easing. As of early April 2019, the MPC further reduced
the repo rate by further 25 bps and is currently at 6.00% as on date of this document.

Industry Overview -

The NBFC sector in India observed significant turmoil in FY19 particularly starting Q3. The
events unfolded negatively commencing with the default of IL&FS entities. Within few days
of this credit event, DSP MF sold Commercial Paper of Dewan Housing Finance Limited at a
high yield. This prompted a sharp sell-off in capital markets and exposed the following issues
in the sector:

1. Loan Against Securities offered by NBFCs to Promoters of listed businesses for general
corporate purpose, which were utilized for non-alignhed businesses which had higher risk
profile, e.g. real estate and infrastructure. Rumors of delayed payments on the part of
these borrowers started taking shape in the market

2. Theabove situation led to a question mark over NBFCs’ ability to roll over existing funding
facilities,

3. Where NBFCs held liquid, listed security of Promoters, some of them liquidated part of
the pledged holdings to recover [oan exposure.

4. This led to a slowdown in funding availability to NBFCs starting towards end of Q2 and
persisting until at least for a quarter for the largest NBFCs.

5. Perception of high valuations of listed NBFCs with imminent slowdown in asset book
growth due to starved funding led to decline in their market capitalization levels.

6. NBFCs effectively lost market share to well-capitalized banks who supplied part of the
credit demand in the period described above.
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Since January 2019, the liquidity issues have eased for the larger NBFCs including lIFL group
entities, who have resumed the process of loan growth, albeit with @ more measured stance.

Research and Development (R & D}: The Company is engaged in distribution of various
financing activities such as capital market financing, loan against securities, IPO, etc., which
entails internal research of debt financing, investment products, sectors and markets,

Dividend:
With a view to conserve resources, your Directors regret their inability to recommend any

dividend for the FY 2018-19.

Transfer to Reserves:
During the FY 2018-19, the Company has transferred an amount of Rs. 362.96 million {as per
Ind AS) to Special Reserve in accordance with Section 45IC of the Reserve Bank of india Act,

1934,

Capital Adequacy:
During the year under review, the capital adequacy ratio stood at 32.8% comprising of
Tier | capital ratio of 28.7 % and Tier Il capital ratio of 4.1%, well above the regulatory

requirement of 15%.

Subsidiary/ Joint Ventures/ Associates:
The Company does not have any subsidiaries/ joint ventures/ associates.

Share Capital:

During the year under review, the Company made issue and allotment of 4,30,44,070 equity
shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- each to its holding company namely {IFL Wealth
Management Limited.

As on end of financial year, the total authorised share capital of the Company stood at INR
350,00,00,000/- and the total issued, subscribed and paid up capital of the Company stood
at INR 305,49,38,030/-.

Deposits:
During the year under review, your Company has not accepted/ renewed any deposit within
the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules thereto.
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11. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
a. Directors:
The Board consists of Five Directors namely:
1) Mr. Yatin Shah —~ Appointed w.e.f. October 04, 2016,
) Mr. Himanshu Jain — Appointed w.e.f. October 04, 2016.
) Mr. Shantanu Rastogi — Appointed w.e.f. July 26, 2016.
4y Mpr. S, Narayan — Appointed w.e.f. March 31, 2017.
} Mrs. Rekha Warriar Appointed w.e.f. August 01, 2018,

During the period under review, Mr. P. Vijaya Bhaskar ceased to be the Director of the
Company with effective from May 04, 2018 due to his sad demise and Ms. Deepali Nair
resigned as Director of the Company effective from August 01, 2018,

In terms of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of applicable provisions
of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Yatin Shah, Director of your Company,
retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appeointment.

i Meetings of the Board of Directors -
The Board met 7 times during the financial year 2018-19 to discuss various
agendas and also approved various matters including financials, appointment of
auditor, and other board businesses.

if. Committees of the Board -
In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the Reserve Bank of India
guidelines, the Board has constituted following Committees as per the applicable
provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and the guidelines prescribed by the Reserve
Bank of India.
{iy  Audit Committee,
{iil Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
(iii) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
(iv) Risk Management Committee.
(v) Asset Liability Management Committee.
(vi) Finance Committee,
{vii) Debenture Allotment Committee.
{viii) Anti-Money Laundering Committee (ALM)
(ix) IT Strategy Committee
(x) IT Steering Committee
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(i) Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee was reconstituted w.e.f. August 01, 2018 comprising of
Mprs. Rekha Warriar, Mr. S. Narayan and Mr. Shantanu Rastogi. The role, terms
of reference and powers of the Audit Committee are in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2013, the Reserve Bank of India & internal
policies. The Committee met four times during the year under review and
discussed on financials, audit issues and appointment of auditors. During the
period under review, all the recommendations of the Audit Committee were
accepted by the Board of Directors of the Company.

The terms of reference of audit committee, inter alia, includes;

d,

> @

(i)

the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of
appointment of auditors of the Company;

review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;
approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company
with related parties:

Provided that the Audit Committee may make omnibus approval for
related party transactions proposed to be entered into by the Company
subject to such conditions as may be prescribed;

scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is
necessary;

evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related
matters,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was re-constituted w.e.f.
August 01, 2018 comprising of Mr. S. Narayan, Mr. Rekha Warriar and Mr.
Yatin Shah and Mr. Himanshu Jain, As per the provisions of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013, the Committee has in place a nomination and
remuneration policy and the said policy is available for inspection and
available on website of the Company htips://iiflwealth.com/services/lending-
solutions .
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(iif)

(iv)

{vii)

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee {“CSR Committee”) was
reconstituted w.e.f. August 01, 2018 comprising of Dr. S. Narayan,
Independent Director, Mrs. Rekha Warriar, Independent Director and Mr.
Shantanu Rastogi, Non- Executive Director. The CSR Committee has
approved and adopted a CSR Policy of the Company. HFL group has set-up
India Infoline Foundation (referred as “lIFL Foundation”} a Section 8
Company under the Companies Act, 2013, which acts as the principalarm to
undertake the CSR initiatives on behalf of the IIFL Group. The details about
the policy developed and implemented on Corporate Social Responsibility
initiatives taken during the year under review is attached as Annexure I.

Risk Management Committee:

The Risk Management Committee was last re-constituted on August 01,
2018 comprising of Mr, Himanshu lain, Whole time Director & CEQ, Mr.
Shantanu Rastogi, Non-Executive Director, Mr. R. Mohan, Chief Compliance
Officer-HIFL Group, Mr. Niraj Murarka, COO, Mr. Raghuvir Mukherji, Chief
Risk Officer and Mrs, Rekha Warriar, Independent Director.

Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO):

The ALCO was last re-constituted on August 01, 2018 comprising of Mr.
Himanshu Jain, Whole time Director & CEO, Mrs. Rekha Warriar,
Independent Director, Mr, Shantanu Rastogi, Non-Executive Director, Mr.
Niraj Murarka, COO, Mr. Mihir Nanavati, CFO and Mr. Pankaj Fitkariwala,
President-Operations.

Finance Committee:

The Finance Committee was last re-constituted on January 30, 2018
comprising of Mr. Himanshu Jain, Whole time Director & CEQ, Mr. Mihir
Nanavati, CFO and Mr. Niraj Murarka, COO.

Debenture Allotment Committee:

The Debenture Allotment Committee was constituted on May 5, 2016
comprising of Mr. Umang Papneja, Non-executive Director, Mr. Niraj
Murarka, COO and Mr. Mihir Nanavati, CFO. Members may please note, on
lanuary 30, 2018, the Board re-constituted the Finance Committee by
appointing Mr. Himanshu Jain in place of Mr. Umang Papneja as the member
of the Company.
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{viii) Anti-Money Laundering Committee:
The AML Committee was constituted on October 30, 2017 comprising of Mr.
Himanshu Jain, WTD and CEO, Mr. Niraj Murarka, Chief Operating Officer,
Me. Rakesh Chandnani, SVP-Operations, Mr. Raghuvir Mukherji, Chief Risk
Officer, and Mr. Manoj Gujaran, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer.

{ix) 1T Strategy Committee;
The IT Strategy Committee was constituted on January 30, 2018 comprising
of Dr. S. Narayan, Independent Director, Mr. Pankaj Fitkariwala, Senior
Managing Partner, Mr. Abhishek Chandra, Chief Information Officer, Mr.
Raghuvir Mukherji, Chief Risk Officer.

(x} IT Steering Committee:
The IT Strategy Committee was constituted on January 30, 2018 comprising
of Mr. Himanshu Jain, Mr. Pankaj Fitkariwala, Mr. Himanshu Bhagat, Mr,
Abhishek Chandra, Mr, Raghuvir Mukherji, Mr. Niraj Murarka, Mr. Mihir
Nanavati, Mr. Manoj Gujaran, Mr. Ramaswamy Sunka, and Mr. Ganesh lyer.

iii.  Annual Evaluation of the Board -
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee has carried out evaluation of every directors’
performance and subsequently the Board has carried out the annual performance
evaluation of its own performance, committees and the Directors individually
including the independent Directors,

iv. Declaration by Independent Directors -
The Company has received declaration from each independent director under
section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of
independence laid down in section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013.
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Managerial Remuneration:

During the year under review, the employees were drawing remuneration pursuant to
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 {2) of the Companies {Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the details of the same wili be made
available if a written request is received from the shareholders. Further, if the request is
received prior to the date of Annual General Meeting the details will be made available
within 3 days and if the request if received post the date of Annual General Meeting then
such particulars will be made availabte within 7 days.

Employee Stock Option/ Purchase Scheme:
The Company does not have an employee stock option / stock purchase scheme.

Risk Management Policy:

Your Company has a Board approved Risk Management Policy, which has laid down a
framework for identifying, assessing, measuring various elements of risk involved in the
business and  formulation of procedures and systems for  mitigating
such risks. Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company
constituted in accordance with the Reserve Bank of India guidelines has overall responsibility
for overseeing the Risk Management activities of the Company, approving measurement
methodologies and appropriate risk management procedures across the organization. Risk
Management Department periodically places its report on risk management to the Risk
Management and Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

Internal Financial Control:

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitorand mitigate various risks
to key business objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are
systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. These are
discussed at the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Company has in place adequate internal controls with reference to financial statements
and operations and the same are operating effectively. The Statutory Auditors verified the
systems and processes and confirmed that the Internal Financial Controls system over
financial reporting are adequate and such controls are operating effectively.

Credit Rating:

The non-convertible debentures of the Company enjoys the rating of [ICRA] AA (stable
outlook) by ICRA Limited. The principal protected market linked/ structured non-convertible
debentures of the Company have the rating of PP MLD (ICRA) AA (Stable Outlook). Further,
the Commercial Paper of the Company has the highest rating of ICRA AL+,
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Strong Credit Ratings by leading Rating Agencies reflect the Company’s prudence and
discipline.

Extract of Annual Return:
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT 9 is annexed

herewith as Annexure - 1|

Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals Impacting
the going concern status of the Company:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which would impact the going concern status and the Company’s future operations,

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company:
During the period under review, the following are the material changes and commitments
affecting the financial position of the Company:

(a) The Company made issue and allotment of Secured Market Linked/ Perpetual/
Subordinated Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures aggregating to INR 2867.68
crores in different series on private placement during the year ended March 31, 2019,

{(b) The Company made issue of the Commercial Paper and outstanding balance was INR
397.85 Crores as on March 31, 2019,

Auditors:

At the Annual General Meeting held on July 26, 2016, M/s, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP,
Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold
office till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2021.

Comments on auditors’ report:
There are no qualifications, reservations or ohservations by the Statutory Auditors in their

report for the financial year ended March 31, 2019.

Secretarial Audit;

During the year under review, the Secretarial Audit was conducted by M/s. J.U. Poojari &
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, in accordance with the provisions of section 204
of the Companies Act, 2013. The report of the Secretarial Audit is annexed herewith as
Annexure - lIl, There are no qualifications, reservations or observations in the Secretarial
Audit report. Your directors have to state that the Company has been compliant of all
applicable provisions of the Act in the financial year 2018-19.
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Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186:
The details of loans, guarantees or investments made are provided in the Financial
Statement (Please refer Note No. 8 and 9).

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:

All related party transactions that were entered during the financial year were in ordinary
course of the business of the Company and were at arm’s length. No contract/ arrangement
have been entered by the Company with its promoters, directors, key managerial personnel
or other persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company. Since
all related party transactions entered into by the Company were in the ordinary course of
business and were on an arm’s length basis, Form AOC-2 is not applicabie to the Company.
The transactions with related party are disclosed by way of notes to accounts vide
note no. 40 in the financial results of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,

2019.

Justification for entering into Related Party Transactions:
The Company usually enters into Related Party Transaction to ensure timely availability of
products/ services required.

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
The information on energy conservation, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo stipulated under Section 134(3}{m) of the Companies Act 2013 read with
Rule 8 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given hereunder:

Conservation of energy:

The Company is engaged in providing financial services and as such its operations do not

account for substantial energy consumption. However, the Company is taking all possible

measures to conserve energy. Several environment friendly measures were adopted by the

Company such as:

e Installation of capacitors to save power,

s [nstalled Thin Film Transistor (TFT) monitors that saves power,

e  Light Emitting Diode {LED) lights,

e Automatic power shutdown of idle monitors,

e Creating environmental awareness by way of distributing the information in electronic
form,

o  Minimising air-conditioning usage,

o  Shutting off all the lights when not in use, and

¢ Education and awareness programs for employees.
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The management frequently puts circulars on corporate intranet, IWIN for the employees
educating them on ways and means to conserve the electricity and other natural resources
and ensures strict compliance of the same.

Technology absorption and innovation:

The management understands the importance of technology in the business segments it
operates and lays utmost emphasis on system development and use of best technology
available in the industry. The management keeps itself abreast of technological
advancements in the industry and ensures continued and sustained efforts towards
absorption of technology, adaptation as well as development of the same to meet the
business needs and objectives,

The management invested considerable resources in deploying the latest technologies in the
areas of wide area networking using MPLS, video communications, VolP, automated dialers
and other customer relationship management (CRM) tools and software. The Company also
made significant strides in using cloud technology for customer-facing servers providing
rapid and inexpensive ramp-up or down of capacity in line with business requirements.

The management is aware of increasing threats in the Information Security domain and has
taken several steps to ensure that the Company is safe guarded against hacking attacks, data
leakage and security breaches. IT and certain business processes have been recertified for
ISO 27001 systems for practicing industry standard security implementations and processes.
The management has invested resources in implementing controls and continuously
monitoring violations, if any.

Foreign exchange earnings/outgo:
a) The Foreign exchange earnings: NiL
b) The Foreign exchange expenditure: NIL

Research and Development {R & D): The Company is engaged in the lending business which
entails capital market financing, loan against securities, PO, loan against property, etc.,
which entails internal research of debt financing, investment products, sectors and markets.

Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act 2013:

The Company is committed to provide a work environment that ensures every woman
employee is treated with dignity and respect and afforded equitable treatment. The
Company is also committed to promote a work environment that is conducive to the
professional growth of its women employees and encourages equality of opportunity. The
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27.

28,

29.

Company will not tolerate any form of sexual harassment and is committed to take all
necessary steps to ensure that its women employees are not subjected to any form of
harassment.

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed
pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013,

Disclosures on Establishment of Vigil Mechanism:
The Company has established a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report their
genuine concerns which are reported to Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Vigil
Mechanism policy is available on website of the company
https://iiflwealth.com/services/lending-solutions.

Further, during the year under review no case of frauds were reported by any of the person
of the Company.

Frauds:
The Auditors of the Company have not reported any frauds under Section 143(12) of the

Companies Act, 2013,

Directors Responsibility Statement:

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby

confirmed that:

a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b} the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of
the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

c} the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e} the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such system were adequate and operating effectively,
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The Directors further confirm that, they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems are
adequate and operating effectively.

30. Corporate Governance:

The Company has fully complied with the Corporate Governance Guidelines for NBFCs issued
by Reserve Bank of India vide Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company — Non-
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and as
amended from time to time, in accordance with the said Corporate Governance Guidelines,
the Company has constituted various committees and ensures best corporate practices to
increase the investors and other stakeholders’ confidence. The Company has complied with
all the norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) including the Fair Practices Code,
Anti Money Laundering and Know Your Customer (KYC) guidelines besides other guidelines,
as applicable.

A summary of the Corporate Governance measures adopted by the Company are given

below:

a) The Company recognizes its role as a corporate citizen and endeavours to adopt the best
practices and the highest standards of corporate governance through transparency in
business ethics, accountability to its customers, Government and others. The Company’s
activities are carried out in accordance with good corporate practices and the Company
is constantly striving to hetter them by adopting the best practices.

b) The Company believes that good Corporate Governance practices enable the
Management to direct and control the affairs of the Company in an efficient manner and
to Company’s goal of maximizing value for all its stakeholders.

The Board of Directors along with its Committees provides leadership and guidance to the
Company’s Management and directs, supervises and controls the activities of the Company.
The size of the Board is commensurate with the size and business of the Company. At
present, the Board comprises of five directors, viz., Mr. Yatin Shah, Mr. Himanshu Jain, Mr.
Shantanu Rastogi, Mr. S. Narayan and Mrs. Rekha Warriar.

Responsibilities of the Board:

i, The Board's key purpose is to ensure the Company's prosperity by collectively directing
the company’s affairs, whilst meeting the appropriate interests of its shareholders and
stakeholders.

ii. The Board is primarily responsible for:

a. Establishing vision, mission & values and determining, reviewing the goals, policy of
the Company from time to time;
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31.

32.

33.

34.

b. Setting strategy and structure and deciding the means to implement and support
them;

c. Delegating to management, determining monitoring criteria to be used and
ensuring effectiveness of internal controls;

d. Exercising accountability to shareholders and be responsible to relevant
stakeholders; and

e. Management and control.

Regulatory Compliance:

The Company has complied with all the applicable guidelines prescribed by RBI for non-
deposit taking systemically important NBFCs regarding accounting standards, prudential
norms including income recognition, capital adequacy, guidelines of corporate governance,
ate,

Downstream Investment:
During the financial year 2018-19, the Company has not made any downstream investments

in terms of the Foreign Direct Investment Policy.

Green Initiative:

Section 136 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules framed there under allows the
Company to send its Financial Statements by electronic mode to such Members whose
shareholding is in dematerialized format and whose email addresses are registered with the
Depositories for communication purposes. As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company
proposes to effect electronic delivery of the Annual Report of the Company in lieu of the
paper form to the Members who have registered their email IDs with the Depositories. A
physical copy of the Annual Report will be sent to those Members who have not registered
their email addresses with the Depositories for receiving electronic communication, A
physical copy of this Annual Report can also be obtained free of cost by any member from
the registered office of the Company on any working day during the business hours.

A copy of this Annual Report for FY 2018-19 is available on website of the Company,
hitps//iiflwealth.com/services/lending-solutions

Acknowledgements:

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank the Reserve Bank of India, financial institutions,
banks, and all other stakeholders for their continued support and assistance during the
period under review. Your Directors would also like to thank the employees for their
dedication towards the growth of the Company,
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35. Annexure{s) forming part of this Report of Directors:

The Annexure(s) referred to in this Report and other information which are required to be
disclosed are annexed herewith and form a part of this Report of the Directors:
e Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) activities for the financial year

2018-19 as Annexure -~ |.

e  Form No. MGT 9 Extract of Annual return as on financial year ended March 31, 2019 as

Annexure Il

e Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 as Annexure — 1l1.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

o o

Whole-time Director & CEO
DIN: 02052409

Date: May 13, 2019
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE ~ |

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility activities for the financial year 2018-19
[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section {3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social

Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. A brief outline of the
company’s CSR policy, including
overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a
reference to the web-link to the
CSR  policy and projects or
programs.

The CSR Policy and projects of IIFL Wealth Finance Ltd. are
steered by the same values that guide the business of the iIFL
Group of Companies. It can be summarized in one acronym —
GIFTS, which stands for:

e Growth

s [ntegrity

» Fairness

+ Transparency

* Service Orientation

By applying these values to the CSR projects, IIFL Wealth Finance
Limited undertakes initiatives that create sustainable growth and
empowers underprivileged sections of society.

The focus areas prioritized by IFL Wealth Finance Limited in its
CSR strategy are given below:

¢ Sports Development for Nation Building
e Education
e Health

The CSR Policy adopted by IIFL Group of companies is available

on
hitps.//wwwi.iif.com/sites/default/files/pdf/IIFL_CSR_policy.pdf

2. The Composition of the CSR
Committee

CSR Committee of the Company comprises of:
(i) Mr. S. Narayan, (ii) Mr. Shantanu Rastogi, and (iii} Mrs. Rekha
Warriar

3. Average net profit of the
company for last three financial
years

INR 1,22,70,26,678/-

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure
{two per cent of the amount as in
item 3 above)

INR 2,45,40,534/-

5. Details of CSR spent during the

financial year

a} Total amount to be spent
for the financial year;

INR 2,45,40,534/-
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b) Amount Spent; and NR 2,45,40,534/-

c) Amount unspent, if any. Nil

Manner in which expenditure has been depicted in the table given below:

1 Development of | Promot | Across India 74,47,841/- Direct - 74,47,841/- | 74,47,841/- Through
Sports hy ion of 74,47,841/- India Infoline Foundation
providing world | Sports
class platform
for young
budding players

2 Support and Promot | Maharashtra 70,80,000/- Direct - 70,80,000/- | 70,80,000/- Through
nurturing to ion of 70,80,000/- india Infoline Foundation
players from Sports
under privileged
backgrounds

3 Educational Educati | Noida (Uttar 11,50,000/- Direct - 11,50,000/- | 11,50,000/- Through
support to oh Pradesh) & 11,50,000/- India Infoline Foundation
children from Mumbai
marginalized {Maharashtra)
communities

4 Medical Support | Health | Maharashtra | 15,00,000/- Direct - 15,00,000/- { 15,00,000/- Through
to Poor Patients 15,00,000/- India infoline Foundation

5 Promotion of Fducati |} Rajasthan 73,62,693/- Direct - 73,62,693/- | 73,62,693/- Through
Education to on 73,62,693/- india Infoline Foundation
school dropout
children

Brief description of key projects:

1) Promotion of Sports: India has always lagged behind in sports despite having no dearth of
talent and people. What is needed is adequate exposure, proper coaching and support to the
players. India Infoline Foundation organized sports tournaments at grass root level that were
a match to Olympic & International class, These sports tournament not only do identify talent
but nurture and provide necessary platform for the budding sports enthusiast to excel and
move up the charts.
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2) Educational supportto Children: Running after school program in schools for underprivileged
children, The program supplements formal education by Improving proficiency in English,
Mentoring children to support their social and intellectual development, encouraging
practical learning through field trips, imparting soft skills with the help of experts in various
fields, Developing art, culture and sports education through extra- curricular activities.

3) Medical Support to Poor Patients: Providing timely medical support to patients from poor
families and support them in recovering fast is very critical as one health incident can push

the families back intoc poverty.

4) Promotion of Education to school dropout children: Providing educational support to
children who drop out of school mid-way and subsequently mainstream them or help them

appear for end school exam.

Responsibility Statement - Through this report, IIFL Wealth Finance Limited seeks to
communicate its commitment towards CSR to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The
implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and
policies as laid down in this report. The Board of the company and the CSR Committee is
responsible for the integrity and the objectivity of all the information provided in the disclosure
above. All projects reported have been selected based on careful evaluation of the extent to
which they create sustainable positive outcomes for marginalized segments of society, The
company has adopted measures to ensure that these projects are implemented in an effective
and efficient manner so that they are able to deliver maximum potential impact. In line with the
requirements of the Section 135, the company has also established a monitoring mechanism to

track the progress of its CSR projects.

For

€
Himanshu Jain

CEQ and Whole Time Director
DIN: 02052409

Date: May 13, 2019
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure ||

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2019
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Companies {Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Registration and other details:

i} CIN

UB5990MH1994PLC080646

i) Registration Date

August 31, 1994

ifi) Name of the Company

[IFL. Wealth Finance Limited (formerly known as
Chephis Capital Markets Limited)

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company

Public Company, Limited by shares

v) Address of the Registered office and contact
details

6th Floor, iFL Centre, Kamala City, Senapati
Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai: 400013

Tel No.: +91-22-42499000

Fax No.: +91-22-25806654

vi) Whether listed company

No

vii} Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Link Intime Private Limited

C 101, 247 Park,

L B S Marg, Vikhroli West
Mumbai 400 083

Tel: +91-22-49186000

Fax: +91-22-2594 6969

E-mail : mumbai@linkintime.co.in
Website: www.linkintime.co.in

Principal business activities of the company:

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company are

given below:

Name and Description of main NIC Code of the Product/ |% to total turnover of
products/ services service * the company
Other Credit granting 6492 100%
* As per National Industrial Classification — Ministry of Statistics and Programme
Implementation
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Particulars of holding, subsidiary and associate companies:

H o,
Name and CIN/GLN Holdtngl /:]Of Applicable
Address of the company Subsidiary/) shares section
Associate | held
HFL Wealth Management Limited U74140MH2008PLC177884; Holding 100 2(46)
. . Ultimate
HFL Holdings Limited* L74999MH1995PLCO93797 Holdin - 2(46)
olding

* Pursuant to the implementation of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement involving lIFL Wealth
Management Limited, IIFL. Finance Limited, India Infoline Media & Research Services Limited, HIFL
Securities Limited, India Infoline Finance Limited, lIFl. Distribution Services Limited and their respective
shareholders with effect from May 13, 20189, liFL Finance Limited (formerly IIFL. Holdings Limited) ceases
to be the ultimate holding company of HiFL Wealth Finance Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of IFL
Wealth Management Limited)

V.

Share holding pattern {(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):
i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year (31t %
Shareholders {015t April 2018) March 2019} Change
during
the
Year
Demat Physical Totaf % of Demat Physical Total % of
Total Total
Shares Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) o] 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Individual/HUF
b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 (.00
¢) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
d) Bodies Carp, 26,24,49,733 0§ 26,24,49,733 | 100.00 30,54,93,803 0] 30,54,93,803 | 100.00 0.00
e) Banks / Fl 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
f) Any Cther 0 0] ¢ 0.00 0 0 ¢ 0.00 0.00
Sub-total 26,24,49,733 0| 26,24,49,733 | 100.00 30,54,93,802 0 | 30,54,93,803 | 100.00 0.00
{Ay(1):-
(2) Foreign
a) MRls -~ G 0 0 0.00 G 0 0 0.00 .00
Individuals
b} Other - 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Individuals
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¢) Bodies Corp. 0 o 0 0.00 0 0 c 0.00 0.00
d) Banks / F 0 o] 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
e} Any Other 0 0 0 0.00 o] 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-total 0 0 0 0.0C 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
(AN2)-

Total 26,24,49,733 0 26,24,49,733 | 100.00 30,54,93,803 0 | 30,54,93,803 | 100.00 0.00
shareholding of

Promoter {A) =

(A)()+(A)(2)

B. Public

Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0] 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
b) Banks / FI c 0 0 0.00 0 ¢} 0 0.00 0.00
¢) Central Govt 0 0 o 0.00 0 o 0 0.00 0.00
d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
e} Venture 0 o 0 0.c0 0 0 G 0.00 0.00
Capital Funds

f} Insurance 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Comgpanies

g) Flis 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
h) Foreign 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.00 0.00
Venture Capital

Funds

i)Others 0 ¢ 0 0.00 0 0 6] 0.00 0.00
{specify}

Sub-total 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
2.Non-

institutions

a) Bodies Corp,

i) Indian 8 0.00 0 0.00 0.00
if} Qverseas 0 0.00 0 0 o .00 0.00
b} Individuals

i} Individual 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
shareholders

holding nominal

share capital

upto Rs. 1 lakh
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A8

i1} tndividual 0 0 0 .00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh
¢} Others 0 0 0 0,00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
(specify)
Sub-total 0 ) 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
(B){2}:-
Total Public 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Shareholding
{B}=(B}(1)+(B)(2)
C. Shares held 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
by Custedian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total *26,24,49,733 0 | 26,24,49,733 | 100.00 | *30,54,93,803 0 | 30,54,93,803 | 100.00 0.00
(A+B+C)
*Note: No. of Equity shares includes 6 Equity Shares held by Nominee Shareholders of IIFL Wealth
Management Limited.
i) Shareholding of Promoters
Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the year % change
Name the year (31° March 2019) in
(01* April 2018} shareholdi
ng during
the year
No. of Shares | % of % of No. of Shares | % of % of
total Shares total Shares
Shares | Pledged / Shares | Pledged /
of the | encumber of the | encumbere
compa | ed to total compa | dto total
ny shares ny shares
*HFL Wealth 26,24,49,733 100 Nil 30,54,93,803 100 Nil -
Management
Limited
Total 26,24,49,733 100 Nil | 30,54,93,803 100 il -
*Note: No. of Equity shares includes 6 Equity Shares held by Nominee Shareholders of IIFL Wealth

Management Limited.
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iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding {please specify, if there is no change)
Shareholding at the Cumulative Sharehoiding during
beginning of the year the year
(As on 01-04-2018) (31-03-2019)
No. of shares | % of total No. of % of total shares
shares of shares of the company
the
company
At the beginning of the year 26,24,49,733 100 | 26,24,49,733 100
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Issue of - | 30,54,93,803 -
Promoters Shareholding during the year 4,30,44,070
specifying the reasons for increase / equity shares
decrease {e.g. allotment / transfer / on right basis
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year as on 31-03-2019 30,54,93,803 100 | 30,54,93,803 100
iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders {other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs):
No. of shares at the | Date | Increase/Decrease | Reason | Cumulative Shareholding

beginning (01-04-
17)/end of the year

in share-holding

during the year
{01-04-17 to 31-03-18)

(31-03-18)
For Each of No. of % of total No. of % of total shares
the Top 10 shares shares of shares of the company
Shareholders the
company

[FL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED
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v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Name Shareholding Date Increase/ Reason Cumulative Shareholding
Decrease during the year
in share- {01-04-18 to 31-03-19)
halding
No. of % of No. of % of total
shares at total shares shares of the
the shares company
beginning of the
(01-04- compa
18)/end of ny
the year
(31-03-18)
A. DIRECTORS:
Yatin Shah j 1 f ' - l - . ‘ 1 , -
B. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP’s)
3 I N N T ~

*Directors hold equity shares in the capacity of nominee of IIFL. Wealth Management Limited.

V. Indebtedness: Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not

due for payments:
{INR. in millions)

exi:;f;é’g;::its Unsecured Loans Deposit | Total Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of year
(i) Principal amount 19,368.90 47,510.63 - 66,879.52
(i) Int. due but not paid - - - -
gﬂi’”t' acerued but not 1,000.48 334.26 - 1,334.73
Total ( i+ ii+ ifi) 20,369.37 47,844.88 - 68,214.26
Changes in Indebtedness during the year
Addition{Net) 139,780.02 189,051.71 - 328,831.72
Reduction (105,327.56) (226,638.94) - (331,966.50)
Net Change 34,452.46 {37,587.24) - {3,134.78)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year {31.03.2019)
(i) Principal amount ] 53,219.36 | 9,540.12 | - | 62,759.48

IFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED
{FORMERLY KNOWN AS CHEPHIS CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED)

Corporate & Registered Qffice:

6™ Floor, HFL Centre, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel (W), Mumbai - 400 013

Tel: (91-22) 3958 5600 |  Fax: (91-22) 4645 4706

{(An IIFL Growp Company}
wwwi.iiftwealthfinance.com CIN: UBS990MH1994P1CORGEAS
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{ii) Int. due but not paid - - - -
{iil) Int. accrued but not 1602.47 217.53 ) 2:320
due
Total (i+ ii+ iif) 54,821.83 10,257.65 - 65,079.48
* The above does not include Cash credit facility from banks
VI, Remuneration of directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount (Rs.)
Himanshu Jain (WTD and CEQ)

1. Gross salary
{a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

2,58,15,114.00 2,58,15,114.00
(b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961 0 0
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 0 0
2. Stock Option 0 0
3. Sweat Equity 0 0
4. Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify 0 0
5. Cthers, please specify 8,07,737.69 8,07,737.69
TOTAL (A) 2,66,22,851.69 2,66,22,851.69

Ceiling as per the Act

Rs. 30,33,79,470 (being 11% of the net profits of the
Company calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies,

2013)

B. Remuneration to other directors:

{Amt. in Rs.)

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
i. [ndependent Directors Mr. P. Vijaya | Mr. 8. Narayan Ms. Rekha

Bhaskar Warriar
- Fee for attending 1,35,000 6,75,000 3,75,000 11,85,000
-~ Commission® 10,600,000 - 10.00,000

HFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

FFORIERLY KROWN AS CHEPHIS CAFITAL MARKETS LIMITER)

Corporete & Reglstered Office:

& oo, HEL Centre, Kamata Clty, Senapati Bapat Mar g,
Lowaer Parel (W), Mumba - 200013

Tel: {91-22) 3958 5600 | Faxi (§1-22] 4646 4706

(AnITFL Group Company)
www.iiflwealthiinance .com
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- Others, please specify

TOTAL (1)

11,35,000

6,75,000

3,75,000 21,85,000

i. Other Non-Executive

~ Fee for attending

- Commission

- Others, please specify

TOTAL{2)

TOTAL (B)= (1+2}

11,35,000

6,75,000

3,75,000 21,85,000

Total Managerial Remuneration

21,85,000

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Rs. 30,33,79,470 (being 11% of the net profits of the Company calculated
as per Section 198 of the Companies, 2013)

*Commission pertaining to FY 2017-18 paid during FY 2018-19.

Note: Other Directors namely Mr. Yatin Shah and Shantanu Rastogi were not paid any remuneration.

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD:

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Mihir Nanavati Manoj Gujaran  |Total Amount {INR)
(CFO) (Company Secretary)
1. Gross salary
a. Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income Tax 21,73,242.00 21,73,242.00
Act, 1961
b. Value of perquisites ufs 17{2} of 0 0
the Income Tax Act, 1961
c. Profits in lieu of salary under section 0 0
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option 0
3. Sweat Equity 0 0
4, Comtnission
- as % of profit
- others, specify 13,99,835.00 13,99,835.00
5. Others, please specify 1,49,994.40 149,994.40
TOTAL 37,23,071.40 37,23,071.40

HFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

EORRERLY SNGWH AG CHE

Corporate & Registered Office:

& Floor, HEL Coptre, Kamala City, Senapatd Bapal Marg,

Lower Parel (W Mumbai - 400013
Tel (91-22) 39458 5600 | Faw [91-02) 4640 4706

{An HEL Group Company}
www.jiflwealthfinance.com
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Note: Mr. Mihir Nanavati being CFO of Holding Company too, receives remuneration from Holding
Company i.e. lIFl. Wealth Management Limited.

Penalties / Punishment/ Compounding of offences:

Type Section Brief Details of Penalty / Authority Appeal
of the Descriptio | Punishment/ [RD / NCLT/ | made, if
Compani | n Compounding fees COURT] any (give
es Act imposed Details)

A, Company

Penalty NIL

Punishment

Compounding

B. Directors

Penalty NIL

Punishment

Compounding

C. Other Officers In Default

Penalty NIL

Punishment

Compounding

For and on beh

—VIMNMAIN/,

HimanshuJain
Whole-time Director
DIN: 02052409

Date: May 13, 2019
Place: Mumbai

the Board of Directors

Py
(' N 4

& CEO

HFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

(FORBAERLY {NOYWN ASC

Covporate & Registered Offige:

S Hoor, HF. Centre, Kamata City, Senapati Bapat M

tower Parel (W, BMumbai - 400

Tel {G1-22) 3858 5600 | Faxe (9122} 4646 4706

AN HFL Group Company)
wwwiiflwealthiinance.com
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ANNEXURE - Il

FORM NO. VIR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315"TMARCH, 2019 (Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members,

IIFL. Wealth Finance Limited

(Formerly: Chephis Capital Markets Ltd.)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by lIFL Wealth Finance Limited, having
CIN: UB5990MH1994PLC080646 {hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the [IFL Wealth Finance Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and aiso the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct
of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31°' March, 2019 generally complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
made available to us and maintained by IIFL. Wealth Finance Limited for the financial year ended
on 313*March, 2019 according to the provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder, as may be applicable;
ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 {'SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv.  The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment;

HFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

EORRAERLY KNOWN AS THEPHIN CAPITAL MARKETS LiIMITED}

Carparate & Regivtered Office:

B Floor, UL Centre, Ramala Clty, Senapati Bapal Marg,
Lower Parel (W), Mumbai -~ 400013

Telt {91221 2958 5600 | Faxr (91-22] 4646 47086

{ANIFL Group Campany)
www iiflwealthiinance.com CIME LE59B30MI IS4 PLLORDE4E
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v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 {'SEBI Act’):
a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008,
b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations,
1993,
¢}  The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client,
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations,2015; and
e} The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015.

vi.  Other Laws specifically applicable to the Company

a) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as applicable to Non- Banking Financial
Companies;

b)  Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016,

c)  Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016,

d) Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’'s Report (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 20186,

e} Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company Returns (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016; :

f) Master Direction - Know Your Customer (KYC) Direction, 2016; and

g) IRDA (Registration of Corporate Agents) Regulations, 2015.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with
respect to meetings of the Board and its committees and General meetings.
i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

HFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

EFORIGERLY ENOWER AS CHEPHES CAPITAL MARKETS LipITED}

Corporate & Registerad Office:

&t Hoor, HPL Centre, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Loy Paret BWY, Mumbai -~ 400 013

Tel {91-22) 3958 5600 | Faxi {891-22) 4646 47086
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During the year under review and as per the explanations given and the representations made
by the Management, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act and Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, etc.

We further report that:

(@} The company is the wholly-owned subsidiary of IFL Wealth Management Ltd. by virtue
of Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 effective from 13.02.1016. The Board of
Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition of the Board
of Directors that took place during the year under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act.

{b) Adequate notice was given to all Directors at least seven days in advance to schedule the
Board Meetings and its Committees exception some cases at shorter notice with the
consent of all the Directors; Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

{c) Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken with requisite majority.

We further report that as represented by the Company and relied upon by us there are adequate
systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

We further report that during the audit year the Company had following event which had bearing
on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines
etc,
(a) The Company made issue and allotment of total 4,30,44,070 Equity shares of the face
value of Rs. 10/- each to its holding company namely IIFL Wealth Management Limited
during the year ended 31°*March, 2019.
(b) The Company made issue and allotment of  Secured Market
Linked/Perpetual/Subordinated Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures amounting to
Rs. 2867.68 crores in different series on private placement during the vear ended
31*March, 2019.
{c} The Company made issue of Commercial Paper and outstanding balance was Rs. 397.85
Crores as on 31"March, 2019,
(d) Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures were listed on Bombay Stock Exchange during
the year ended 31*March, 2019,
(e) During the year the company has passed the Resolutions for the following matters:
(i) Special Resolution passed u/s 42 of the Act at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting

HFLWEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

FORMERLY (NOWH AS CHEFHIS TAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED]

LCorperate & Registerad Offce:
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(EGM) held on 2™ April, 2018 for issue of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) aggregating
upto INR 2500 crores on private placement basis {ii} Ordinary Resolution passed under
Section 61{1}(a) of the Act at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 20 July, 2018
for increase in Authorised Share capital from INR 300 Crores to INR 350 crores; (iii) Special
Resolution passed u/s 180 (i)(c) at the said AGM for borrowing by the company not
exceeding INR 13000 crores; (iv) Special Resolution passed u/s 42 of the Act at the EGM
held on 20" March, 2019 for increase in the limit from INR 2500 Crores to INR 3000 Crores

for issue of NCD on private placement basis.

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 13, 2019

For J. U. Poojari & Associates
Company Secretaries

Jayaram U Poojari
FCS No: 8102 CP No: 8187

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and Forms

an integral part of this report.

HFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

FORRMERLY KNOWN AS (85 15 CAFITAL MARKETS LIMITED)

Corporate & Registered Office:

M Foor, 1L Centre, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Paret (W), Mumbai -~ 400 013
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(AN UFL Group Company)
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To,

‘Annexure A’

The Members
of lIFL. Wealth Finance Ltd.
(Formerly: Chephis Capital Markets Ltd.)

Qur report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on cur audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a
reascnable basis for ocur opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted

the affairs of the Company,
For J.U. Poojari & Associates

Company Secretaries

Place: Mumbai

Jayaram U Poojari

Date: May 13, 2019 FCS No: 8102 CP No: 8187

IPFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

FORARMERLY SHOWK AS CHEPHIS CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED)

Covporate & Registered Office:
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-] Chartered Accountants
DEIOItte Indiabulls Finance Centre
il Tower 3, 27"-32™ Floor
Haskins & SellsLLP Senesel e iy
Elphinstone Road (West)

Mumbai - 400 013
Maharashtra, Indla

Tel: +91 22 6185 4000
Fax: +91 22 6185 4001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of IIFL Wealth Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IIFL Wealth Finance Limited
(“the Company"”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Qur responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27" - 32 Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India,
(LLP Identification No, AAB-B737)



Deloitte

Haskins & Sells LLP

Sr. No.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor's Response

Impairment of carrying value of
loans and advances:

The Company exercises significant
judgement using subjective

| assumptions over both when and

how much to record as loan
impairment and estimation of the
amount of the impairment
provision for loans and advances.

Since the loans and advances form
a major portion of the Company's
assets, and due to the significance
of the judgments wused In
classifying loans and advances into
various stages as stipulated in IND
A5 109 and determining related
impairment provision
requirements, this is considered to
be the area that had a greater
focus of our overall audit of the
Company and a key audit matter,

As at 31 March 2019, the
Company's gross loans and
advances amounted to Rs.
4,91,07,59,966 and the related

impairment provisions amounted to
Rs. 22,80,00,000. (Refer note no.
8)

Principal audit procedures performed:

We read the Company's
impairment provisioning policy;
We gained understanding of the
Company's key credit processes

comprising granting, booking,
monitoring, staging and
provisioning and tested the

operating effectiveness of key
controls over these processes;
We tested the completeness of
loans and advances included in
the Expected Credit Loss
calculations as of 31 March
2019;

For data from external sources,
we understood the process of
choosing such data, its
relevance for the Company, and
the controls and governance
over such data;

Where relevant, we used
Information System specialists
to gain comfort on data
integrity and completeness of
the aging report;

For a sample of exposures, we
tested the appropriateness of
staging into Stage 1, 2 and 3;
We obtained an understanding
of the Company's provisioning
methodology, consistency of
various inputs and assumptions
used, the reasonableness of the
underlying assumptions and the
sufficiency of the data used by
the management;

For a sample of exposures, we
tested the appropriateness of
determining Exposure at
Default (EAD);

For Probability of Default (PD)
used in the ECL calculations we
checked the PDs used for a
sample of exposures;

For a sample of exposures, we
tested the the Loss Given
Default (LGD) used in the ECL
calculations, including the
appropriateness of the use of
collateral and the resultant
arithmetical calculations;

We tested the appropriateness
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of the opening balance
adjustments to wverify the
bifurcation of Impairment loss
into transition adjustment and
charge for the period.

Information Technology and
General Controls

The Company is highly dependent
on technology due to significant
number of transactions that are
processed electronically daily.
Accordingly, our audit procedures
have a focus on IT systems and
controls due to the pervasive
nature and complexity of the IT
environment, the large volume of
transactions processed daily and
the reliance on automated and IT
dependent manual controls. Our
areas of audit focus included
Access Security (including controls
over privileged access), Program
Change controls and Network
Operations.

Absence of segregation of duties
may result in a risk of intended or
unintended manipulation of data
that could have a material effect on
the completeness and accuracy of
the financial statements.

Due to the pervasive nature and

use of IT systems, we continued to

assess the risk of a material
misstatement arising from access
to technology as a significant
matter for the audit.

Principal audit procedures pﬁormed:

For the key IT systems used to prepare
accounting and financial information;

the  Company's

We obtained an understanding
of the Company’s business IT
environment and key changes if
any, during the audit period
that may be relevant to the
audit. Furthermare, we
conducted a risk assessment
and identified IT applications,
databases and operating
systems that are relevant to our
audits;

We tested the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s
General IT controls over the
information systems that are
critical to financial reporting.
This included evaluation of
Company’s controls to ensure
that access was provisioned /
maodified based on  duly
approved requests, access for
exit cases was revoked in a
timely manner and access of all
users was re-certified during
the period of audit. Further,
controls related to program
change were evaluated to verify
whether

the changes were
approved, tested in an
environment that was

segregated from production and

moved to  production by
appropriate users;

We tested the controls to
ensure that segregation of
duties was monitored and

conflicting access was either
removed or mapped to
mitigating controls, which were
documented and tested;

We tested the controls over
network segmentation,
restriction of remote access to
network,
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controls over firewall
configurations and mechanisms
implemented by the Company
to prevent, detect and respond
to network security incidents;

+ We also tested automated
business cycle controls and
report logic for system
generated reports relevant to
the audit, for completeness and

accuracy;
+  Where deficiencies were
identified, we tested

compensating controls or
performed alternate procedures
to assess whether there were
any unaddressed IT risks that
would impact the completeness
and accuracy of data.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors’ report including
Annexures to Directors’ Report etc., but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Directors’ Report including Annexures to

Directors’ report etc. is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report.

s Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

= In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

« When we read the Directors’ report including Annexures to Directors’ Report etc., if
we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA
720 'The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
ppropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
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reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause

\s , the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, to the extent applicable
that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the
reports of the other auditors.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes

in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
\@ reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
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9)

h)

refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A", Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as

amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements

ii.  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts;

ill.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure
B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

S areller
Kalpesh ], Mehta

(Partner)
(Membership No. 48791)

Place: Mumbai

D

b

ate: 13 May 2019
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ANNEXURE "A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IIFL Wealth
Finance Limited (“the Company"”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

N
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reascnable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
Fal

-

Kalpesh 1. Mehfa
(Partner)

(Membership No.48791)
Place: Mumbai

Date: 13 May 2019

b
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion,
provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.
According to the information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us and based on the examination of the registered transfer deed
provided to us, we report that, the title deed, comprising the immovable

property of land which is freehold, is held in the name of the Company as at the
balance sheet date.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of
the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted
unsecured loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties

covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in
respect of which:

(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have
been regular as per stipulations.

(c) There is no overdue armount remaining outstanding as at the year end.

The Company is a registered non-banking finance company to which provisions of
Sections 185 and 186 of the Companles Act, 2013 are not applicable, and hence
reporting under clause (iv) of CARO 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit during the year and hence reporting under clause (v) of the
CARO 2016 is not applicable.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business / activities, reporting under
clause (vi) CARO 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:
(@) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including provident fund, income-tax, goods and services tax, cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us, Custom Duty and
Employees’ State Insurance are not applicable to the Company.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund,
income-tax, service tax/goods and services tax, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

(c) There are no dues of Service Tax, Goods and Services Tax and Value Added Tax

as on 31 March 2019 on account of disputes. Details of Income Tax not
deposited as on31 March 2019 on account of disputes are given below:

"Name of

Nature | Forum where | Period to | Amount Amount
Statute of Dues | Dispute is | which the | Involved | Unpaid
Pending Amount (Rs. mn) | (Rs. mn)
Relates -
Income Income | Commissioner | Financial Year 9,37 7.49
Tax  Act, | Tax of Income-Tax | 2015-16
1961 (Appeal) o

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
institutions, banks and government and dues to debenture holders.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix)
of the CARQ 2016 is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013,
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

The Company Is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
CARO 2016 is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has issued
equity shares. In respect of the above issue, we further repart that;

a) the requirement of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, have
been complied with; and

b) the amounts raised have been applied by the Company during the year for the
purposes for which the funds were raised.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or directors of its holding company or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

The Company is required to be registered and it has obtained the registration under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Jeoael oo

Kalpesh -J Mehta
(Partner)
(Membership No. 48791)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13 May 2019

®



IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2012

T In Mn)
:L Partlculars Note Na. As at March 31, zms' As at March 31, 2013' As at April 1, 2017
ASSETS
1 |Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 4 362.58 379.40 4,781.68
{b) Bank balance other than (a) above 5 - 1,266.60 2,518,97
{c} Derlvative financial instruments 6 960.95 49.75 10.77
(d) Receivables
(1) Trade racelvables 7 2.90 5.59 0.49
(1) Other receivables 7 3,775.35 - B56.67
(e) Loans B 50,162.26 7243531 36,4B1.13
(f) Investments 9 29,393.73 6,405.96 19,457.50
(g Other financial assets 10 331,67 47.51 22.28
2 Non-Financial Assets
(a) Current tax assets (nat) i B | 6.77 -
(b Deferred tax assets (net) 11 76.55 85.67 67.85
(c) Property, plant and equipment 12 104 106 108
(d) Intangible assets under development 13 - - 1.57
(e} Other intangible assets 14 2.10 4.52 3.35
f Other non-financial assets 15 17.10 12.03 13.36
Total Assets 85,087.94 80,710.17 ©4,216.70
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 Financlal Liabilities
(a} Derivative financial instruments 6 2,516,089 814.25 254,02
{b) Payables
Trade payables
(i) total autstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises 16.1 ;
(if) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 5
small enterprises 19.09 94.29 229.26
(c) Debt securities 17 39,732.69 18,562.29 17,838.60
{d) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 18 15,186.91 41,598.54 30,009.05
(e) Subordinated liabilities 19 5,701.34 5,617.98 4,435.00
] Dther financial liabilities 20 2,690,05 1,399.65 520,49
2 Non-Financlal Liabllities
(a) Current tax liabllitles (net) 22118 10.46 162.93
(b) Provisians 1 4.16 4.88 1.17
{c) Other non-financial liabilities 22 7.60 B.B1 D.42
3 EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 23 3,054.94 2,624.50 2,624.50
(b) Other equity 13A 15,953.89 9,574.52 B,141.26
Total Liabilities and Equity 85,087.94 80,710.17 €4,216.70
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

-

-

Kalpesh J. Mehta
Partner

Place : Mumbal
Date : May 13th, 2019
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Himanshu Jain
Whaole Time Director

and Chief Executive Officer

(DIN: 02052409)

o

—Mihir Nanavati
Chief Financial Officer

\_q_/;l

L

atin $hah
Non-executive Director

(DIN: 03231080)

Company Secretary



IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

{Zin Mn)
Sr.
N; Particulars Note No. 2018-19 2017-18
1 |Revenue from operations
(a) Interest income 24 £,556.38 6,617.72
(b) Dividend & Distribution incamea on Investments 25 18.96 279.92
(e} Fees and commission income 26 42.85 155.81
{d) Net gain on fair value changes 27 478.85 650.07
Total revenue from operations 7.097.04 7,703.52
2 Otherincome 28 0.04
3 Total income {142) 7,097.04 7,703.56
Expenses
(a) Finance costs 29 4,217.77 5,327.51
(b) Impairment on financial instruments 30 (75.56) 135.77
{c) Employee benefits expenses 31 63.01 1B1.84
(d) Depreciation, amortization and Impairment 12,14 2.53 1.94
(e) Other expenses l 32 157.02 135.52
] Total expenses 4,355.35 5,782.58
5 Profit before tax (3-4) 2,731.37 1,920.98
6 Tax expense:

{a) Current tax 33 896.03 515.00
{b) Deferred tax 33 20.26 (27.64)
7 Profit for the year (5-6) 1,815.08 1,433.62

8 Other comprehensive income
{a) (i} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 311
- Remeasurements of Employee Benefits (D.43) (0.51)
i) | ti lating to It hat will lassifl fit or |
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss 13 0.15 0.18
Subtotal (a) (0.28) (0.33)
(b) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Foreign currency translation reserve 5
(if) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal {b) i E
Other comprehensive income/{lass) (a+b) (0.28) (0.33)
3 Total comprehensive income for the period (748) (Comprising profit and other
comprehenslve income/(loss) for the year) 1,814.80 1,433.29
10 Earnings per equity share
Basic (Rs.) 34 6.22 5.46
Diluted {Rs.) 34 6.22 5.46
See accompanying Notes to the Financlal Statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
- - ¢ & ’l 14, /
| L Az ~ la
Kalpesh 1. Mehta —————— " Himanshu lain Yatjn Shah
Partner Whale Time Director n-executive Directol

and Chief Executive Officer
(DIN; D2052409)

N,

Mihir Nanavati
Chief Financial Officer

(DIN: 03231090)

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 13th, 2019

u
Company Secretary



IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(T in Mn)
Barticulars 2018-19 2017-18
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before taxation 2,73137 1,920.96
Adjustments for: - -
Depreciation & amortisation 253 1.94
Provisions for employee benfits (0.82) 2.08
Profit on Sale of Investments -Realised {576.44) (837.75)
Profit on Sale of Investments -UnRealised (45.84) 161.98
Impairment on Financial Instrument (75.56) 135.77
Mark to Market on Derivative Financial Instrument 62.71 [24.64)
Interest income (6,556.38) (6,617.72)
Interest expenses 4,217.78 532751
Dividend/distribution Income from investments {18.96) (279.92)
Interest received 6,460.71 6,063.17
Interast pald {3,141.18} (4,010.03)
Dividend received 18.96 279.92
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,078.88 2,123.27
Changes in warking Capital :
(Increase)/ Decrease in Financial/Mon-financial Assets (5,006.10) 1,086.56
Increase/ (Decrease) in Financial/Non-financial Liabilities 535.09 (45.51)
Cash (used in lfganerated from operations {1,392.13 3,164.32
Decrease/(Increase) in Loans 22,143.05 (35,244.83)
Cash gen fr operating activities 20,750.92 (32,080.51
Net income tax [pal fl (685.31) {667.47
|Net cash generated from /(used in) operating activities (A) 20,065.61 (32,747.98)
B. Cash flows from investing actlvities
Purchase of investments {1,145,481 97) (1,029,280.10)
Sale of investments 1,123,434.48 1,042,734.06 J
Fixed Deposit placed (7,823.50)] (17,746.64)
Fixed Deposit matured 9,083.33 18,701.78
(Purchase)/sale of Property, plant and equipment (Includes intangible assets)-Not {0.09) (1.53)
|Net cash generated from/{used In) Investing activities (B) {20,797.75) 14,407.57 |
€. Cash flows from financing activities
Issuance of share capital 430.44 -
Securlties premium received 4,569.56 Z
Debt Securities and Subordinated Liabilities- taken 28,967.07 13,460.80
Debt Securities and Subordinated Liabilities - repald (6,343.79) {11,125.80)
Borrowings - taken 252,892.85 379,361.56
Borrowings - repaid (279,807.81) (367,758.53)
Intercorporate Deposit - taken 45,420.57 172,268.75
Intercorporate Deposit - repald (45,408.57) {172,268.75)
hare [ssue ax paid (5.00) 5
et cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (C) 715. 13,938.13
Net {decrease)/Increase in ea: d cash squivalents (A+B+C) (16.82) (4,402.28
Opening Cash & cash equivalents 379.40 4,781.68
Closing Cash & cash equivalents 362 379.40 |
Reconciliation of Cash & cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and Cash Equivalents as perind AS7 362.58 370.40
Add: In Fixed deposits with maturity more than 3 months - 1,266.60
Cash & cash equlivalents (Refer Note 4) 362.58 1,646.00
See accompanying Notes ta the Financial Statements

Interms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Far and on behalf of Board of Directors

Kalpesh J. Mehta
Partner

Place : Mumbai

Date : May 13th, 2019
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Whole Time Director
and Chief Executive Officer
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Non-executive Director
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IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

F.Y 2018-19

Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company

® In_MBI_‘

Dther Equity
Special Roserve
Pursuant to
Section 45 IC af Capital
Equity Share Securlties General Reserve Bank of | Redemption
Particulars Capital Preml Reserve Indla Act, 1934 Reserve  |Retained Earnings| Total Other Equity Total
Balance as at 1st April 2018 2,624.50 6,993.78 1.43 516.29 2.30 2,060.73 9,574.53 12,199.03
shares issued during the year 430.44 4,569.56 - - - - 4,569.56 5.000.00
Share issue expenses - (5.00) = - = (5.00) |5.00}
Profits for the year - - 1,815.08 1,815.08 181508
Other Comprehensive —
income/{loss) . - b - {0.28) (0.28) (0.28)
Transfer (to)/from ather reserves - - - 362,96 (362.96) - -
Balance as at 31st March 2019 3,054.94 11:558.36 1.43 879,25 2.30 H,E_B'é? 15,953.89 19,008.83
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY F.Y 2017-18
(T In Mn)
Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company
Other Equity
Special Resorve
Pursuant to
Sactlon 45 IC of Capltal
Equity Share Securities Genaral Reserve Bank of | Redemption
|Particulars Capltal Premium Reserve India Act, 1934 Reserve  |Retalned Earnings| Total Other Equity Total
Balance as at 1st April 2017 * 2,624.50 6,993,78 1.43 204,25 2.30 938,50 B,141.26 10,765.76
Profits for tha year - - = - = 1,433.60 1,433.60 1,433,860
Other Camprehensive
incame/(loss) - - - - {0.33) {0.33) (0.33)
Transfer (to)/from ather resorves - - - 312.04 - {312.04) - =
|Balance as at 31st March 2018 2,624.50 6,993.78 143 516.29 2.30 2,060.73 9,574.53 12,199.03

* Refer Note 3

i) Securities Pramium

Securitles Premium includes the difference between face value of equity shares and consideration in respect of shares issued. The issue expenses of sacurities which qualify as aquity
Instruments are written off against securities premium account.

N} General Resarve

The Company has transferred a portion of the net profit of the Company befare declaring dividend to general reserve pursuant to the earlier provisions of Companies Act, 1956,
Mandatory transfer to general reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013,

ill) Special Reserve Pursuant to Section 45 IC of Reserve Bank of Indla Act, 1934

As per Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the Company Is required to transfer at Jeast 20% of its nat profits every year to a reserve befare any dividend Is declared.

Iv) Capital Redemption Reserve

Capltal Redemption Reserve {CRR) can be used only for issue of fully paid bonus shares as per Companies Act, 2013,

v) Debenture Redemptlon Reserve

There is no Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) created as the Non-Banking Financial Companies registered with Reserve Bank of India are not required to ereate DRR for the

privately placed debenturas.

vl) Retained Earnings
Retalned earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfars to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

-
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Kalpesh 1. Mehta
Partner

Place : Mumbai
Date ; May 13th, 2019

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
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IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements of IIFL Wealth Finance Limited for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 1. Corporate Information:

IIFL Wealth Finance Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act,
1956 and is a wholly owned subsidiary of IIFL Wealth Management Limited. The Companyisa systemically important
non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC ND-5I1”) registered with the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) under section 45-1A of the RBI Act, 1934 having a valid certificate of registration no. B-13.00361 dated March
18, 1998, and is primarily engaged in the financing and investing activities. The Company offers broad suite of
financial products that includes loan against securities, capital market / IPO financing, loan against property, etc.
catering to the financing needs of corporate and high net worth customers.

Note 2 — Significant Accounting Policies

a) Statement of Compliance:

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and amendments thereof issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred
by section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute

of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) are also applied except where compliance with other statutory
promulgations require a different treatment.

Upto the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with
the requirements of Indian GAAP (IGAAP), as per standards notified under the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006. These are the Company’s first Ind AS financial statements. The date of

transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2017. Refer note 3 for the details of first-time adoption exemptions
availed by the Company.

b) These financials statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their
meeting held on May 13, 2019

c) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when the promised goods and services are transferred to the customer i.e. when
performance obligations are satisfied. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with
a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

s Lending / Investments related Income
= Interestincome on investments and loans is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and the effective interest rate including interest on investments classified as fair value
through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income. Interest receivable on customer
dues is recognised as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis provided there is no
uncertainty towards its realisation.
- Dividend income is accounted in the period in which the right to receive the same is established.

Other items of income including fees and commissions are accounted as and when the service obligations are

completed and right to receive such income arises and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow and
the amount of income can be measured reliably.
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d) Property, plant and equipment

Measurement at recognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost.

Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at its cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment separately,
if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of that item of property, plant and equipment and has
useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining item. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises of its purchase price including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or
levies, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the initial
estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the
recognition criteria are met. Expenses related to plans, designs and drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is
capitalized under relevant heads of property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

Capital work in progress and Capital advances:
Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress.

Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed as Other
Non-Financial Assets,

Depreciation:

Depreciation on each item of property, plant and equipment is provided using the Straight-Line Method based on
the useful lives of the assets as estimated by the management and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Significant components of assets identified separately pursuant to the requirements under Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013 are depreciated separately over their useful life.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of lease. Individual
assets / group of similar assets costing up to Rs. 5,000 has been depreciated in full in the year of purchase.

Estimated useful life of the assets is as under:

Class of assets Useful life in years

Office equipment 5

* For these class of assets, based on internal assessment and independent technical evaluation carried out by
external valuers the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over
which management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013,

The useful lives, residual values of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment and the depreciation
methods are reviewed at the end of each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous
estimates, such change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is
derecognized.
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e) Intangible assets

Measurement at recognition:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets arising on
acquisition of business are measured at fair value as at date of acquisition. . Following initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful life are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if

any. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, that are acquired separately, are carried at cost/fair value at the
date of acquisition less accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Amortization:

Intangible Assets with finite lives are amortized on a Straight Line basis over the estimated useful economic life.
The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with finite useful life is reviewed at

the end of each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, such change is
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

Estimated useful economic life of the assets is as under:
Class of assets

Software

Useful life in years
3-5

Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset is measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

f) Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, such as goodwill, are not subject to amortization and are tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. Assets that are subject
to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such circumstances include, though are not limited to,

significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in the economic
environment.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit (CGU)
exceeds its recaverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less cost to
sell and value in use. To calculate value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market rates and the risk specific to the asset. For an
asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the
CGU to which the asset belongs. Fair value less cost to sell is the best estimate of the amount obtainable from
the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the cost of
disposal. Impairment losses, If any, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and included in
depreciation and amortization expenses.

Impairment losses are reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that the asset's carrying

amountdoes not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had
previously been recognized.
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g) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

s Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

The Company recognizes a financial asset in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual
pravisions of the instrument. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the

acquisition of the financial assets. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are measured at transaction price.

Subsequent measurement:

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the Company’s
business model for managing the financial asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset.

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories:

i, Financial assets measured at amortized cost

ii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

ili. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
- The Company’s business mode! objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in arder to
collect contractual cash flows, and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to Cash and Bank balances, Trade receivables, Loans and Other financial assets of the

Company. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

ii. Financial assets measured at FVTQCI:

Afinancial asset is measured at FVTOC! if both of the following conditions are met:
- The Company's business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For the above category, income by way of interest and dividend, provision for impairment are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss and changes in fair value (other than on account of above income or expense) are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in other equity. On disposal of such debt

instruments at FVTOC! financial assets, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in other equity is
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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ili. Financial assets measured at FVTPL:

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as mentioned above.,
This is a residual category applied to all other investments of the Company excluding investments in associate Such

financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition:

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when any of the following occurs:

- The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;

- The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially
transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;

- The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the
cash flows without material delay to one or more recipients under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement (thereby
substantially transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset);

- The Company neither transfers nor retains, substantially all risk and rewards of ownership, and does not retain
control over the financial asset.

On Derecognition of a financial asset, (except as mentioned in ii above for financial assets measured at FVTOCI),

the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which
are not measured at FVTPL. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless

there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at
lifetime ECL.

e  Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive
(i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company estimates cash
flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument,

The Company measures the loss allowance on financial assets at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the lifetime expected credit losses
and represent cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months weighted by the

probability of default after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the
next 12 months.

e When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that
assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as atthe
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
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recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost
or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables and financial assets arising from transactions with in the scope of Ind AS 115 the Company
measures the |oss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit |oss allowance for trade receivables, the Com pany
has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed
based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for factors that

are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and forward-
looking information,

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the obligor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,

+ Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement:
The Company recognizes a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual

pravisions of the instrument. Having regards to the terms and structure of issuance, Financial Liabilities are
categorized as follows:

() recognized at amortised costs
(ii) recognized at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) including the embedded derivative component if
any, which is not separated.

(i) where there is an embedded derivative as part of the financial liability, such embedded derivative is
separated and recorded at fair value and the remaining component is categorized as on amortised costs.

Subsequent measurement:

(i) All financlal labilities of the Company are categorized as subsequently measured at amortized cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest method.

(i) All financial liabilities of the Company are categorized at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit and loss statement.

{iii) For derivatives embedded in the liability, the embedded derivative is subsequently measured at fair value

through profit and loss and the liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires.

h) Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivative financial contracts, which are initially recognized at fair value at the date the
contracts are entered into and subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.

The resulting gain or loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument

In a financial instrument involving embedded derivative, which is separated from the host contract, such
embedded derivative component is accounted separately from the underlying host contract and is initially
recognized at fair value and is subsequently remeasured at fair value at each reporting period and the resulting
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gain orloss is recognized in the statement of sprofit and loss unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

i) Fair Value

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned
above, Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as follows. The fair value hierarchy gives
the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 inputs) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 2 inputs).

Level 1 — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 —inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization at the end of each reporting period and discloses the same.

i} Measurement of foreign currency items at reporting date
Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary
items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date

of the transaction. Nonmonetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency, are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is measured.

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

k) Income Taxes

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period In respect of
current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax:

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period, Taxable profit differs
from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible in accordance with

applicable tax laws. Current tax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit under Income tax
Act, 1961. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. In case of
temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business
combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not
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recognized. Also, for temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of goodwill, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognized.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary difference can be utilized. In case of
temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business

combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax assets are not
recognized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extentthat it Is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefits of partorall
of such deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temparary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at esach
Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset Is written down to the extent there is no

longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period.

Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income, in which case, the current and deferred
tax income/expense are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the
Company has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on

the Company. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effectis included in the accounting for the business combination.

1) Provisions and Contingencies

The Company recognizes provisions when a present abligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
exists and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle such
obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision Is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).
A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not require an outflow of resources embadying economlc benefits or the amount of such
obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of

which likelihood of outflow of resources embodylng economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

m) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank
balances, demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less.
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n) Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits:

All employee benefits payable whally within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term
employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. The
Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange

for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid.
Post-Employment Benefits:

(1) Defined contribution plans:

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Company pays fixed
contributions Into state managed retirement benefit schemes and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions, if any, if the state managed funds do not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and preceding financial years. The
Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the financial year to which they relate. The Company operates defined contribution plans pertaining to
Employee State Insurance Scheme and Government administered Pension Fund Scheme for all applicable
employees and the Company also operates Defined Contribution Plans pertaining to Provident Fund
Scheme.

Recognition and measurement of defined contribution plans: The Company recognizes contribution
payable to a defined contribution plan as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
employees render services to the Company during the reporting period. If the contributions payable for
services received from employees before the reporting date exceeds the contributions already pald, the
deficit payable is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the reporting date, the excess is

recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future
payments or a cash refund.

II. Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity is post-employment benefit and is in the nature of defined benefit plan. The liability recognized
in the Balance Sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of defined benefit obligation at the Balance
Sheet date together with the adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gain or losses and the past service

costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated at or near the Balance Sheet date by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit plans:

The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method with

actuarial valuations being carried out at each reporting date. The defined benefit obligations recognized in
the Balance Sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit obligations as reduced by the fair
value of plan assets, if applicable. Any defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit obligations resulting

from this calculation) is recognized representing the present value of available refunds and reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

All expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost if any and net interest on the defined
benefit liability (asset) are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasurements of the net
defined benefit liability (asset) comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on the plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset), are recognized in

Other Comprehensive Income. Such remeasurements are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the subsequent periods.

AN
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0) Lease accounting

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Assets taken on |lease:

In respect of operating leases, lease rentals are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on
straight line basis over the lease term unless

i) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the benefit is derived fram leased
asset; or

il) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate
the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases

In respect of assets obtained on finance leases, assets are recognised at lower of the fair value at the date of
acquisition and present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the Balance Sheet as a finance lease obligation. The excess of lease payments over the recorded lease

obligations are treated as ‘finance charges’ which are allocated to each lease term so as to produce a constant rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations.

p) Borrowing Cost

Bsorrowing cost includes interest, amortization of transaction costs incurred in connection with the arrangement
of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded
as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs, If any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalized, if any. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they accur.

q) Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief

operating decision maker (CODM) of the Holding Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company.

r} Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are
deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from
continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of
the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding
shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

5) Recent Accounting pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 116, Leases effective April
1,2019. The Company is in the process of studying the impact on the financial statements,

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the
determination of taxable profit /loss, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there Is
uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to determine
the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments that the
companies have to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or
the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit / tax loss, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates, The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix Cis annual periods beginning
on or after April 1, 2019, The Company is evaluating impact of the above amendment.
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Amendment of Ind AS 12 — Income taxes in connection with accounting of dividend distribution - The amendment
clarifies that an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensives income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past transactions or
events. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2019. The Company is evaluating the impact of the above.

t) KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and

estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,

that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below:

- Property, Plant and Equipment

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected
useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The lives are based on historical experience with
similar assets and are based on changes in technical or commercial obsolescence.

- Defined Benefit Obligation

The costs are assessed on the basis of assumptions selected by the management. These assumptions include salary
escalation rate, discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates.

- Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured
based on guoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigues, including the
discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and assumptions.

- Expected Credit Loss

The provision for expected credit |oss involves estimating the probability of default and loss given default based on
the past experience and other factors.

- / p“‘-"_.-_‘
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Notes forming part of Financlal Statamants for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 3, First time adoption of Ind AS

The Company has prepared opening balance shaet as per Ind AS as of April 1, 2017 (transition date) by recognising all assets and liabilitles whose racognition Is
required by Ind AS, derecognising items of assats or liabllities which are not permitted to be recognised by Ind AS, reclassifying Items from |-GAAP te Ind AS a3
required, and applying Ind AS to measure tho racognised assets and liabilities. The exemptions avalled by the Company are a3 follows:

(i The Company has adopted the-carrying value determined In accordance with I-GAAP for all of its praperty plant and equipment and intangible assets as
deemed cast of such assets at the transition date,

() The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retraspactivaly; however, as permitted by Ind A5 103, it has used reasonable and
supportabla informatian that is available without undue cost or effort to detarmine the eredit risk at the date that financlal instruments were initizlly recognised
In erder te compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Furthar, as parmittad by Ind AS 101, the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for
Infarmation when determining, at the date of transition ta Ind ASs, whathar thara have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

Reconclliation of Total Equity as at April 1, 2017 and March 31,2018

& In Mn)
As at 31st March
GUIEy R BEON IR As at 1st April 2017 2018 Notas
As par IGAAP 10,642.62 12,288.50
Change in fair value of investments 158,20 19.44 1
Impairment an Financlal instrumants {39.51) (26.58) 2
Effactive Interest Rate for financial liabilities recognised at amortized cost 19.90 . 3
ESOP Compensation Cost {1.00) {2.35) “
Securities Premium on Debantures - {8%.68) 5
Defarred tax impact on above adjustments (14.45 6,39 [
As per Ind AS 10,765.76 12,199.02
Reconclliation of Total Comprehensive Income as at 315t March 31,2018 (T in Mn)
Reconclllation of Tatal Comprehensive Income As at 31st March 2018 Notes
Net Inceme under indian GAAP 1,560.20
|Change in fair value of investments {138.75) 1
Actuarial gain/ loss recognised on employee benefit in other comprehensive
income 0.51 7
Imgirmont ah Financial Instruments 12.93 Fi
Effective Interest Rate for financlal liabllities recognised at mﬁ]zed cost {19,90) 3
ESOP Compensatlon Cost {1.95) 4
Defarred tax impact on above adjustments 20.58 3
Net Income as per Ind AS 1,433.62
Other Comprehensive Incama (0.33) 7
Total Comprehensiva Income as per Ind AS 1,433.29
Effect of ind AS adoption on the Balanca Shest as at 31st March, 2018 (X In Mn}
As at March 31, 2018
sr.
No.  |Particulars As por IGAAP Ind AS adjustments As par Ind AS Notes
ASSETS

1 Financial Assots
(a Cash and cash equlvalants 379.40 . 370.40
(b Bank balance other than (a) above 1,266.60 - 1,266.60

& Darivative financial instruments 49,75 - 49.75
{d) Receivables - - -

1) Trada recaivables 5.58 : 5.59
11) Other receivables = - -

& iLoans 72,461.89 (26.58) 72,435.31 2
{f Invastmants 6,386.52 19.44 6,405.96 1
(g) Other financial assels 47.51 - 47,51
2 Non-Financial Assals e : -

{a} _|Current tax assets {net) 6.77 - 6.77
{ Deferred tax assets [net] 29.37 6.90 95.67 6

(c Property, plant and equipment 1.06 . 1.06
{d Other intangible assets 4.52 - 4.52
& Other non-financial assets 12.03 = 12.03

Tolal Assets 80,711.01 0.84 80,710.17
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES

1 |Financlal Uabllities
(a) __ |Derivative finaneial instruments 814,25 - 814.25
!b] Payables L - -

Trade payables = - =
() tetal sutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises i 3 S
(il total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises 94,29 - 94.29

] Debt sacuritiaz 18,490.58 7171 18 562.29 5
id Borrowings (other than dobt securities) 41,598,54 g 41,998.54
(=] Subordinated liabilities 5,604.00 13.98 5.617.98 5
) Other financial liabilities 1,396.70 2.95 1,399 6% 4
F] Non-Finsneial Liabilitias - - -

{8) __|Current tox labflities (net) 10.46 - 1046
{b] Pravislons 4.88 - 4.88
(g] Othat non-financial liabilities 8.81 B 881
3 EQUITY - 5 =
- L] Equity share capital 2,624 50 - 2,624.50
el o B 15 48)
ther equity 9,664.00 (29.48) 9,574,52
[Tdtal Lisbilities and Equity 80,711.01 10.84)] £0,710.17




1IFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statemonts for the Year ended March 31, 2013

Note 3, First time adoption of Ind AS

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Balance Sheat as at 1st April, 2017

[T in Mn
As at Aprll 1, 2017 2.1e)
;:‘ Partlculars As per IGAAP Ind AS adjustments | As par Ind AS Nates
ASSETS
1 Financial Assets
3 Cash and cash equivalents A.781.68 = 4,781.68
(b] Bank balance other than (a) abova 2,51&_.97 = 2,518.97
c Derlvative financisl instruments 10,77 P 10,07
(d} Recelvables
(I} Trade recaivablos 0.43 - 0.49
(1) Other recelvablas 856,67 - 856,67
| Loans 36,520.64 {39.51) 36,481.13 ]
{f Invastmants 19,299.30 158,20 19,457.50 1
Other financial assets 22.28 - 12.8
2 Non-Finangial Assets
(a) Defaired tax aisets [net) 82,30 (14.45 67.85 3
b Property, plant and equipment 1.08 = 1.08
{c) Capital wark-In-prograss 1.57 - 1.57
(d} Other intangible sssets 3.35 - 335
(e) Other non-financial assets 13.56 13.36
Total Assets — 64,112,496 104.24 £4,216.70
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 3
LIABILITIES .
1 Financial Uabilities 2
(a) Derlvative financlal Instrumants 254.02 - 254.02
(b} Payables 3
Trade payables -
() total outstanding duns of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
T ot o e o o B e,
enterprises 229.26 - 229.26
() Other payablas -
|) total sutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises .
(11} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
antarprises 4
[ Debt securities 17,838.60 - 17,838,680
(d Borrowings (other than debt securities) 30,009.05 = 30,000.05
{e] Suberdinatad labilitias 4,435.00 B 4,435.00
{f} Other finencial llabilities 539,39 (18.50 520.49 aka
F] Mon-Financial Labilities -
{a) _|current tax labllities (net) 162.93 5 162.93
!b! Pravislons 117 = 1.17
(e} Other non-financlal liabilities 0.42 . 0.42
3 EQUTY -
a Equity share capital 2,624.50 - 2,624,50
[B)__|Other equity 8.018.13 123,14 8,141.26
Tatal Labllities and Equity 64,112.46 104.24 64,216.70

Notes

1. As per IGAAP, Investmants were valued at lower of Cost and Market Value, However as per Ind A%, Investments classified at Fair value through Profit and loss

ara to recognised at Falr Value and hence the Company has restated its investments to reflect the market valua and corraspnding impact being taken to
Statemant of Prefit and Loss .

2. The Company had recognised Contingent Pravision on Standard Assets till Financial year 20172018 which was a3 required by RBi Prudential Narms, After the

adoption of Ind AS the Company s required to calculate Expected Credit Loss(ECL) on all its financial assets, The impact shown above is the differantial Impact
due to adootion of ECL bv the Companv.

3. The Company was accounting Its transaction cost on debl securities on a straight line basis. However after adopting Ind AS, the Company has started
racognising the transaction costs as per Effective Rate of Interest [EIR) methad and the amount shown above s the Impact of this adjustment.

4. ESOP charge Is accounted for using falr value mathed. The partlon of ESOP charge payable te holding company Is accordingly measured and recopnised at fair
value. Under FGAAP ESOP charge was calculated basad on Intrinsie value mathed,

5. The securities premium received on issue of debentures was classified under Reserves & Surplus In IGAAP while the same was reclassified to Berrowings under
Ind AS.

6. Defarred tax (3 the tax Impact of all the adjustments between IGAAP and Ind AS.

7. Actuarial gains and losses pertaining to defined benafit ebligations and re-measurament pertaining to return on plan assets are recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income in accordance with Ind AS 19 and ara not raclassifiad to prafit ar loss, ’

8. Derivative component of Debt securities has been seperated and transferred to Derivative Financial Instrumants.
9, Thera it no impact on Cash Flow due to first time adoption of Ind AS.

A\




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

Notes faorming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

{Tin Mn)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2019 2018 As at April 1, 2017
Cash and Cash Equivalents (As per Ind AS 7 Statement of Cashflows)
Chegues in hand - - 8.43
Balance with banks g - =
=In current accounts 362.58 89.23 4,763.22
In Depasit accounts (with original maturity of three months or less) - 290.17 10.03
Cash and cash equivalents (As per Ind AS 7 Statement of Cashflows) 362.58 379.40 4,781.68
Out of the Fixed Deposits shown above: ®in Mn)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2019 2018 As at April 1, 2017
Llen marked against overdraft facility - 10.04 10.03
Total = 10.04 10.03
Note 5. Bank Balance other than 4 above: (T in Mn)
: As at March 31, As at March 11,
Particulars 2019 2018 As at April 1, 2017
Other Bank Balances
In Deposit accounts (with original maturity of more than 2 months) £ 1,266.60 2,518.97
Total - 1,266.60 2,518.97
Out of the Fixed Deposits shown above: & In Mn)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2019 2018 As at April 1, 2017
Lien marked against overdraft facility - 1,266.60 2,518.97
Total = 1,266.60 2,518.97
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HIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

Naotes forming port of Financlal Statements for the Year endad March 31, 2019

Note 10, Dther financlal assets

{2 In Mn)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 1, 2017
Unsecured
Deposit with Clearing Corporation of India Limited (CCIL) 143.90 2230 i
Other deposits 0.45 045 0.45
Rocalvablas fram Gruunguldlng company (Refer Note 40) 12.32 0.44 0.03
Advance for purchase of Invastmants in units of AIF 175.00 = )
Others = 24.42 21.80
Total 331.67 47.51 22.28




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 11. Defarred Taxes

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2019 are as follows:

(T in Mn)
Recognised | MAT Credit | Recognised
Opening in profit or utilised/ | in/reclassified Closing
balance loss Created from OCI balance
Deferred tax assets:
Difference between book base and tax base
of property, plant & equipment and intangible
(0.22) 0.36 - - 0.14

Impairment of Assets 106.08 (26.41) - - 79.67

Retirement benefits for employees 1.41 (0.11) - 0.15 1.45
Total deferred tax assets (A) 107.27 (26.16) - 0.15 81.26
Offsetting of deferred tax {assets) with deferred
tax liabilities -
Net Deferred tax (assets) 107.27 (26.16) - 0.15 81.26
Deferred tax liabilities:

Unrealised profit on Investments etc. (11.60) 5.89 - - (5.71)
Total deferred tax llabilities (B) (11.60) 5.89 - - (5.71)
Offsetting of deferred tax liabilities with deferred
tax (assets) = = . i z
Net Deferred tax liabilities (11.60) 5.89 - - (5.71)
Deferred tax assets (A - B} 95.67 (20.27) - 0.15 76.55
Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2018 are as follows:

— {Z In Mn)
Recognised | MAT Credit | Recognised
Opening In profit or utilised/ | in/reclassified Closing
balance loss Created from OCI balance
Deferred tax assets:

Carried forward tax losses 0.01 (0.01) - - -

impairment of Assets 48,38 57.70 = - 106.08

Retirement benefits for employees 0.11 1.12 - 0.18 1.41
Total deferred tax assets (A) 49.50 58.81 - 0.18 107.49
Offsetting of deferred tax (assets) with deferred
tax liabilities - 2 " & -
Net Deferred tax (assats) 49.50 58.81 - 0.18 107.49
Deferred tax liabilities:

Difference between book base and tax base
of property, plant & equipment and intangible
assets {0.15) (0.07) - - (0.22)

Unrealised profit on investments etc, 19.50 (31.10) - - (11.60)
Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 19.35 (31.17) - - {(11.82)
Offsetting of deferred tax liabilities with deferred
tax (assets) £ - - - -
Net Deferred tax liabilities 19.35 (31.17) - - (11.82)
Deferred tax assets (A - B) 68.85 27.64 - 0.18 95.67




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 12. Property Plant and Equipment

F in Mn)
F.Y 2018-19
Particulars O-fﬂce Land Total

Equipment
Gross Carrying Value as on April 01, 2018 0.08 1.00 1.08
Additions = = =
Deductions/ Adjustments during the year - - -
As at March 31, 2019 0.08 1.00 1.08
Depreciation
Upto April 01, 2018 0.02 - 0.02
Depreciation for the year 0.02 - 0.02
Deductions/Adjustments during the year - - -
Upte March 31, 2019 0.04 - 0.04
Net Block as at March 31, 2019 0.04 1.00 1.04
F.Y 2017-18
Particulars O.fﬁc;e Land Total
Equipment

Grass Carrying Value as on April 01, 2017 * 0.08 1.00 1.08
Additions - - -
Deductions/ Adjustments during the year - - -
As at March 31, 2018 0.08 1.00 1.08
Depreciation
Upto April 01, 2017 . 2 =
Depreciation for the year 0.02 - 0.02
Deductions/Adjustments during the year - - =
Upto March 31, 2018 0.02 - 0.02
Net Block as at March 31, 2018 0.06 1.00 1.06

* Refer Note 3 for exemptions availed




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 13, Intangible Assets under Development

{Tin Mn)
i Asat March 31, | AsatMarch 31 As at April 1
Particulars 506 2018 ' 20 1'; !
Opening balance - 1.57 -
Additions - e 1.57
Deductions - 1.57 - .
Closing Balance - £ 1.57
Note 14. Other Intangible Assets & in Mn)
Particulars AsatMarch 31, | Asat March 31,
2019 2018
Software/Intangible assets- Acquired
Opening Gross Carrying Value* 6.45 3.35
Additions 0.09 3.10
Deductions / adjustments during the year - -
Closing Gross Block 6.54 6.45
Amortisation
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 1.93 &
Amortisation for the year 2,51 1.93
Deductions / adjustments during the year - -
Closing Accumulated Depreciation 4,44 1.93
Net Block 2.10 4.52
* Refer Note 3 for exemptions availed
Note 15. Other Non Financial Assets (X in Mn)
B Asat March 31, | AsatMarch 31, Asat April 1,
2019 2018 2017
Prepaid expanses-Unsecured 10.36 10.42 5.50
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received — Unsecured €.74 1.61 7.86
Total 17.10 12.03 13.36
Note 16. Trade Payables (Fin Mn)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 1,
2019 2018 2017
Trade payables
-(ijTotal outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises (Refer
note 16.1) - 5 -
-(ii)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises :
-Sundry creditors for expenses 0.26 7.49 3.19
-Accrued salaries and benefits 0.37 73.68 220,56
-Provision for expenses 18.46 13.12 551
Total 19.09 94.29 229.26
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UPLWEALTH FINANCE LIMITED
Nate: farming part of Financial Statarnents for tha Yasr onded March 21, 2019

Particulars

[T in Mn)

Debentuies Include ¢

As a1 March 31, 2019

liiue price]
Market Linked Hon Convertihle Debeniure of Face Value Rs, 100,000 Esch Redeemable on 50/04/2019 206792
Market Linked Han C thle O of Face Value R, 100,000 Ench Redeemable sn 19/06/2019 106.50
Market Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs, 1,00.000 Each Redeemable on 19/06/2019 55.00 |
Markat Linkad Nan Convertible Gobenture of Face Value Rs, 1.00,000 Each Redeemable on 21/06/2019 180.02
Market Linked Nan Converllble Debonture of Face Value i, 1,00,000 Fach Redeemable on 24, 019 M;E'
Matket Linked Non Converlible Debenture of Face Valun Ry, 10,00,000 Each Aed, ble an 25/06/2019 750,00
arket Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Valug Ra. 1,00,000 Esch Redsomable on 26/06/201% 75,00
Market Linked Non Convertlble Debenture of Face Valua Rs. 1,00,000 Each Nedeemabla an 03/07/2018 50.00
Market Linked Non Canvertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 100,000 Each Redeemable an 15/07/2019 16150
Market Linked Hon Canverlibls Dak of Face Value Ry, 1.00.000 Each Redeemable an 23/07/2019 4,00
Markgt Unked Non Canvertible Duk of Face Valya Ry, 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 30/07/2019 30.00
Market Linked Nen Convertlble Debentura al Face Valus i, 1,00.000 Tach Redeemable on 30/07/2018 20000 |
Market Linked Hon Convenlble Debenture of Fade Value Ne. 1,00,000 Each And e on 06/08/2013 50,00
Market Linked Non Convertlble Debenture of Faee Valug fls. 1,00,000 Each Rodsamable on 12/08/2019 100
Market Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 100,000 Each Redeemable on 14/08/2019 71045
Market Unked Mon Convariible Debenture of Face Value Ra. 1,00,000 Each Redeeimable on 22/08/2019 10,00 |
|Mnri|t Linked Han C: ble Debeniure of Face Value Rs. 100,000 Each Redeemable sn 23/08/2019 125.00 |
Market Linked Hon £ ible Dek of Face Value Ry. 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 04, 019 54.00
1000
13.00
33.00
Markat Linked Hon Convertible Dabenture of Faca Value Ri. 1,00,000 Exch Redeemable an 15/10/2619 §3.00
Market Linked Hon Converiible Debenture of Face Value R, 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 21/10/2019* 209.50
Markot Linksd Non Convertibla Dok of Face Valua Re. 100,000 Each Redeemalile on 25/10/3019° 234.50
Marke! Linked Hon Canverlible Debonluro of Face Value Ry, 1,00,000 Each Redesmabie on 29/10/2019 20,00
Markel Linked Nen Converilbla Debenture of Face Valua fla. 1,00,000 Ench Redeamable on 04/11/2019 2.984.00
Market Linked Nan Convertible Debentuie of Face Value Rs. 1,00 000 Each Redoamable an 04/11/2019* 11140
Market Linked Non Convartible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 100,000 Each Redeemable on 14/11/3019 2750 |
Ibla Debsniure of Face Value Rs, 100,000 Each Redeemable on 28/11/2019% 45.40
bla Babantura of Faca Value Rs. 1.00,000 Each Redeemabie on 29/11/2013* 2000 |
3,406,561
1000
128,00
3,041.18 |
430,53
100.00
Matket Linked Hon Convenlble Debanturo of Faca Value fie. 1,00,000 Each Redsemable an 14/05 i l.l-l:ll_.ﬂ?
Market Linked Hon Conventible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,600 Each Redeomable on 09/08/2021* 1,434,11
Market Linkad Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1 00,000 Each Redesmabls on 25/10/2021% TOL.TS
Market Linked Nan Convertible Debenture of Face Valuz Rs, 1,00,000 Each Redecmable on 05/05/2023% 1.954.77
Markut Linked Nan Canvartibla Debanture of Face Valus Ry, 1.00.000 Each Redaemable on 27/05/2022* 128828
Market Linked Nen Canvenllle Dcbentura of faca Valun R, 1,00,000 Each Redeamable an 12/07/2023 3000
Market Linked Hen Convertible Debenture of Face Valug fs. 1,00,000 Esch Redsomsbla an 15/12/2023 360.00
Market Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each ledeemable on 28/12/7023 10.00 |
Markat Linked Non C: bis Dt T Face Vafue Rs, 1.00,000 Each Redeemabls sn 04/03/2024 10,00 |
Markst Linked Naon C: blg Dok = of Face Valye Ry, 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 18/01/2024 50.00
Market Linked Han Convertible Debanturs of Faca Valus fir. 1,00,000 Each Redesmable on 07/02/2024 5000 |
Market Linked Hon Conventible Debenlure of Face Value fis. 1,00,000 Each Redeamabla on 14/02/2074 1,603.40
Mariet Linked Nan Canvertible Debenture of Face Value As. 1,00 Eath Redeemabla on 24/10/3024 2,000.68
Markat Linked Non Converilbla Det of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 18/11/2024 2,000.00
Markot Linked Non Converlibla Dak of Faca Value Ry, 1,00.000 Each Redeemabile on 26/06/1035 a70.86
Markel Linked Nan Convertlble Debentute of Face Valun Rts, 1,00,000 fach ble on 05/07/2025 101,80
Market Linked Non Converilile Debenture of Face Value Ri. 1,00,000 Each Redeamable on 03/12/201% 1,504,37
Market Linked Non Convartible Debenture of Face Value Ra. 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 13/03/2026 1,700.17
t Linked Non C ble Debanture of Face Value R, 1.00,000 Each Redeemable on 12/03/2026 1,727.66 |
M Linked Non Canvertibla Debanture of Face Valuu Rs. 1,00.000 Each Redeemable on 12/04/2026 231166
Mirket Linked Mon Convenible Debenture of Faco Valua Rl 1,00,000 Fach Red: le on 27/04/2026 991,09
Matket Linked Hon Converible Debenture of Face Value fli. 1 dcomable on 10/11/2026 60,60 |-
Market Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemable an 13/11/1026 10.00
Market Linked Non Convartible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 100,000 Each Redeemabile an 23/11/1026 85.00 |
Markot Linked Non Converlible Debenture of Face Value Ry, 1.00.000 Each Redesmable on 27/1172026 45.00
Market Linked Non Convertible Debienturs of Face Value R. 1,00,000 Each Redeamable on 03/12/2026 20,00
Market Linked Non Convertlble Debenture af Face Valua Ra. 1,00,000 Each Rad, ble on 04/12/2026 10,00
Market Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value R, 100,000 Each Redeemable on 08/12/2020 10.60
Market Uinked Non Convartible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1 00,000 Each Redeemible on 10/12/2038 __10.00 |
Markat Linked Non C bie Dk of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redesmable on 16/12 /2028 54,00
Markat Linknd Han Canvertible Db of Faca Value Ry. 1.00,000 Each Redeemable on 24/12/2026 10.00
|Market Linked Han Conventlble Debantura of Face Valus fs. 1,00,000 Each Redsamable on 31/12/2026 40,00
Market Linked Non Convenlbls Debanture ol Face Valus Ra. 1,00,000 Ench Rod, ble on 08/07/2017 20.00
Market Linked Non Convertible Debeniure of Face Valug Rs. 1,00 000 Each Redeemablo on 29/12/2027 470.60
Markat Linked Non Converdible Debanture of Face Value Rs. 1,00 Each Redecmable on 11/12/3025% 681,93
Markat Linked Non C: ble Debanture of Face Value Rs. 1,00.000 Each Redeemable on 22/01/20294 706,89 |
41,071.23

* Includes Dattvatk 1t of Debt Securitl

o¥IN .'-',-_-‘1"%‘




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE UMITID
fates forming part of Financial Statomants for tha Year ended Mareh 31, 2019

Panleulars

[ in#n]
Dabantures Include © Aa it March 31, 3018
{1saun prics)
Markat Linked Non Convertibla Debenture of Face Value A, 100,000 Each Redoamable on 27/04/2018 150,00
Markst Linked Non Converllble Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemable an 04/05/2018 450.00
Market Linked Nan Convartibla Dok of Face Value Re. 1.00,000 Each Redeemable on 04/05/2018 194,00
Market Linked Non Converlible Dabenturo of Face Valua Re. 1,00.000 Each Redesmable on 06/05/2018 15.00
Market Linked Nan Convertble Debénture of Facs Value Ry, 1,00.000 Each Aedeemable on 11/05/2018 10.00 |
Market Linked Non Convertible Debentuie ol Face Value its, 1,00,000 Bach Ardeamabla on 11/05/2018 20,00
Warket Linked Non Converilble Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Red ble on 17/05/2018 100.00
Market Linked Non Convartitle Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,008 Each Redeomabie on 16/07/7018 200,00
| Markot Linked Non Ct bla Debentura of Face Value Rs. 1,00.000 Each Redecmablo on 03/08/2018 150.60
Mathet Linked Hon Canvartible Debenturn of Face Value Rs. 1.00.000 Each Redeemabla an 04/08/2018 20,00 |
Market Linked Non Convertible Debentura of face Value Rr, 3,00,000 Each Redeemabile on 13/08/2018 10.00 |
Markei Linked Hon Convenible Debenture of Faca Valun R, 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 17 15.00
Market Linked Non Convenible Debentire of Fate Valus fls. 1,060,000 Each Redeamable an :yos,fz_o;_u 50,00
Markat Linkad Hon Canvertible Debenture of Fage Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeamable on 30/00/2018 03,50
Markot Linked Hon Canveriible Dabenture of Face Value As. 100,000 Each Redeemable an 04/09/2018 100,00
Markat Linked Non C. ble Dabanture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 14/09/3018 32.50 |
Market Linked Hon Convertibla Oobenture of Face Value Rs, 1.00,000 Each Redeermable on 21/09/2018 30.00
Market Linked Non Canvertible Debenturs of Faca Valye Ry, 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 28/09/2018 70.00 |
Market Linked Non Cenvertible Debenture of Face Valua fla, 1,00,000 Esch Nedeemabls on 50(9![1019 220747
Markat Unked Non Convertible Debenture af Fuce Value . 1,060,000 Each Nedremabia an 19/06/2019 110,80
Markat Linked Non Gonvertible Debenture of Face Value R. 1,00,000 Each Nedeamabln an 19/06/2010 £5.00
Markat Linked Non Convertibla Dat of Face Vaiue Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeamabla an 21/06/1010 100,60
Market Linked Hon Convartibla Debenturs of Face Vajue Rs. 1.00,000 Each Redeeenable on u@g[zon 140.70
Market Linked Non Convertible Debentira of Face Valua Ry, 1000000 Each Redeemable on 2 750.00 |
Market Linked Hon Conventible Debenture of Face Valuo Rs. 1,00,000 Kach Redesmable an 2 75.00
|Market Linked Hon Convertible Debenture of Face Valus Rz 1,00,000 Each Red ble an 03/07/2019 50.00
Market Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value As. 1,00 000 Each Redesmabln on 13/07/2019 17150
Markat Linked Non G bln Dat of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 23/07/2019 29.00 |
Mathet Linked Hon £ ibla Dak f Faca Value Rs. 100,000 Each Redeemable on 30/07/2019 33,00
Maiket Linked Nan Convertible Dabentuie of Faca Valus R, 1,00,000 Each Redesmable on !E(ov,l:m 00,00
Market Linked Hon Canvertible Debenturs of Face Valug Ra. 1,00,000 lach Redesmable an 06/08/2019 0.00
Market Linked Non Canvertible Debenture of Face Value Ri. 1,00,600 Each Redsemable an 12/08/2019 503,00
Murket Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00000 Each Redeemakla an 22/08/2019 16.00
Markst Linked Non Convertible Deb of Face Value Rs. 100,000 Each Redeemable an 23/08/2019 125.60
54.00
100.00
10.00
An.ca
of Faca Value Rs. 1.00.000 Each fledeemable on 15/10/3019 63.00 |
Market Linked Nan Canvartibls Debanture of Face Value Rs. 1,00.000 Each Redeemable on 21/10/2019% 209.50
Market Linked Noa Convertible Debentura of Face Value Ry, 1,00,000 [ach Redeemable on 25/10/2019* 234,50
Market Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Fate Value flx. 1,00,000 Esch Redsamable an 29/10/2019 20,00
Market Linked Hon Convertible Debenture of Face Valug Rs. 100,000 Each Redvamable on 04/11/2019% 111.00
Market Linked Non Converiible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 100,000 Each Redeemable on 14/11/3010 21.50
| Market Linked Han Gonvertibla Babonturn of Face Valus R, 1,00.000 Each Redeemable on 28/11/2019* 4540 |
[ Market Linked Non Canvertible Diehenture af faco Value Ry. 1,00.000 Each Redeemable on 28/11/2019* 20.00 |
Market Linked Non Convertitile Debertuie af Foce Valun Ra. 1,00,000 Each Red bla on 20/12/2019 50,00
Markat Lnked Non Convertible Debeniure of Face Vahie Rs. 1,00, 000 Each Redeamable on 14/05/2020 991,01
Murkat Linked Non Convertible Debaniure of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redecmable on 18/03/1021 160,60
Maiket Linked Non Convartibla Bk of Faca Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemabile an 14/05/1021 456,76
Market Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Faca Yalue Ry. 1.00,000 [ach Redeemable on 09 021 1.110.75
Market Linked Non Convertble Debenture of Fate Value . 1,600,000 Each Aedesmable an 25/10/2021" 614,02
Markat Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00 000 Each Redeemable on 15/12/2023 380,00
Market Linked Non Canvartible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemabla on 28/12/2073 20,60
Matket Linked Han Convertibln Debontura af Face Value Ry 1,00.000 Each Redeemabile on 04/01/2024 10.00 |
Market Linked Han Canvertible Debenture of Faco Valus Re. 1,00.000 Esch Rrdrsmahle on 04/01 1024 250,00
Market Linked Non Convertibls Debaniure of Faca Valia Ra. 1,00,000 fach Red, bl on 18/01/2024 50,00
Market Linked Non Convertiale Debenture of Face Value Ra. 1, 06,000 Eath Redoamably on 07/02/2024 50.00
Markat Linked Non Convarilble Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 24/10/1024 2,000.68
Markat Linked Han Canvertible Debenture of Faca Value Rs. 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 18/11/2024
Market Linked Hon Canvenible Debanture of face Valus Ry, 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 06/11/2026
Market Linked Mon Convertible Debenture af Face Valun . 1,00,000 Each Redeemable an 10/11/2026
Markex Linked Non Convertible Debenture af Face Value Ra. 1,00,000 Each flod ble on 10/11/2026
Market Linked Hon Converilble Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redcemable on 13/21/3026
Markat Linked Hon Canvertible Debaniure of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 23/13/2038
Market Linked Hon Convertibla ebanture of Face Value Rs. 1.00,000 Each Redeemable on 24/11/2026
Market Linked Non Convertlble Debantura of Face Value Re. 1.00,000 Each Redesmable on 27/11/2026
Market Uinked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Valuw R, 1,060,000 Each Redsemable on 01/12/2026
Market Linked Non Canvertible Debeniure of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redssmakie on 04/12/2026
Markat Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1 00,000 Each fledeemable on 04/13/2026
Markat Linked Non & il Det of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemable an 08/12/2020
Market Linked Hon Convertibla Debanturs of Faca Value Rs, 1,00.000 Each Redeemalile on 10/12/2026
Mathet Linked Hon Convertible Debanture af Face Valus Ar. 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 16/12/2026
Market Uinked Hon Convertlble Debenturs af Faca Valug e, 1,00,000 Each Redesmabls on nnu:.llj
Market Unked Non Convertitle Debeniure of Face Vilue Ra. 100,000 Esch Redssmuble on 31/12/2026
Market Linked Non Converilble Debaniure of Face Value Ra. 1,00 000 Each Redesmable on 12/01/2027
ble Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemablo an 05/02/2027
of Faco Value Rs. 1,00,000 Mk_eg“_eemm'mv
00,000 Each Redesmable on 13/03/2027
on 18/06/2027
ble on 29/12/2027 470,60
13,288.01

* includas Derivatha comp of Debt




1FL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED
Notas forming part of Finsnclal Stataments far the Yasr andad March 31, 2019

Partieulars 1T in Mn)
Debentures includs : As at April 1, 2017
Issue price)
Market Linked Han Canvertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 100,000 Each Redeemabile on 19/07/2017 98.50 |
Market Linked Hon Canveriibls Dabanture of Face Value Rs, 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 24/07/2017 55.50 |
Markat Linked Non Canvertibla Dak afFace Value Ry 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 26/07/2017 100.00
Market Linked Hon Eanvertible Dok af Fai s, 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 02/08/2017 138,50
Market Linked Non Canvertible Debenture of Face Value R 1,00.000 Bach Redeemable an 10/08/2017 43,50
Maiket Linked Non Canvertible Debenture af & Ra. 1,060,000 Each Red bie an 21/08/2017 180,00
Market Linked Hon Convertible Debenture of ue R. 1,00,000 Each fledeamable an 23/08/2017 40.50
Market Linked Nan Canvertibls Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemable an 30/08/2017 160.00
Market Linked Hon Canvartible Dabenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemabile n 22/09/2017 30.60 |
Market Linked Han Convertible Dak of Face Value Rs, 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 04/10/2017 112.80
Market Linked Hon Canvertible Dek of Face Valus Rs, 1.00,000 Each Redeemable on 04/10/2017 50.00
Market Linked Mon Convertible Debenture of Tace Valun Ry, 1,00,000 Bach bl on 10/10/2017 100.00
Market Linked Hon Canvertible Debenture of Face Value R. 1,00,000 [ach Nedramable an 20/11/2017 130,00
Market Linked Han Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each ledeamable on 20/11/2017 150,00
Market Linked Hon Canveriible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1, 00,000 Esch Redeemable on 20/11/2017 500,00
Market Linked Non Converilble Dabenture of Face Value Rs. 100,000 Each Redeemable on 24/13/201% 100.00
|Market Linkad Non Canveriible Dabenturs of Face Value Rs. 1.00.000 Each Redeemable an 01712 7.50
Matket Linked Han Convertilila Dobenture of Face Value s, 1.00,000 Fach Redeemable an 04/13/2017 37.50
Market Linked Hen Canvertible Debenture of Face Value its. 1,00,000 Each Rednemable an 15/12/2017 74.30
Market Linked Hon Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redosmable on 22/13/2017 3.00
Market Linked Hon Convenible Debenture of Face Value As. 1,00,000 Each Redcamable an 29/12/2017 78.50
Market Linked Hon Convertlbls Debenture of Face Value Rs. 100,000 Each Aedeemable on 20/13/2017 32.50
Markot Linked Hon Convertibla Dat ® of Face Value Rs. 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 16/02/2018 250,00 |
Matket Linked Non Convertibla Debanture of Face Value Rs. 1.00,000 Each Redeemable on 27!‘!&&01& 150,00
Market Lisked Non Convertible Debanture of Face Yaluo Ra. 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 04/05/2018 140,00
Market Linked Non Canvertible Debenture of Face Value Ri. 1,00,000 Each Redssmable on 04/05/2018 194.00
Market Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redesmablo on 06/0%/2010 15.00
Market Linked Nan Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 100,000 Each Redeemible on 11/05/2018 10.00 |
Markat Linked Nan Gonvertible Dabanturs of Face Value R, 1.00.000 Each Redeemalile on 11/05/2018 2000
Matket Linked Non Eonvartibls Dubonture of Face Valus Ry. 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 17/05/2018 100,00 |
Market Linked Non Convertible Debanturs of Faca Valus Re. 1.00,000 Fach Redsemabila an 16/07/2018 200,00
arket Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Ri. 1,00,000 Each Redesmakle on 02/08/2018 146,00
Market Linkad Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,060 Each Redsomable on 04/08/3010 20.00 |

arket Linked Non Convartible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemabile an 17/08/2018

Markat Linkad Han C ble Dok of Face Value Rs. 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 23/08/2018

Matket Linked Nan € ible Dok of Face Valus Re. 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 30/08/2018

Market Linked Non Convertible Debentura of Faca Valun fix, 1,00,000 Esch Aed, bla on 14/05/2018

Market Linked Non Conventible Debienture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Ench Rodromabls on 21/09/20318

Market Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00 000 Each Redeumable on 21/09/2018

Markat Linked Nan Canvertible Debenture of Face Value Rs: 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 19/06/2019

B e e e i e e s e e T T

Mirkat Linked Nan C hls Dot of Face Value Rs. 1.00.000 Each Redeemable an 24/06/2019

Market Linked Non Convertible Dek ol Face Value Rs, 1.00,000 Fach Redesmable on 26/06/2019

Market Linked Non Canvertible Debentura of Face Valio s, 1,060,000 Each Red le an 03/07/2018

Market Linked Non Convenible Debenture af Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 13/07/2019

Market Linked Non Canvariible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Esch fedeemabin on 23/07/2019

Markat Linked Nen © bl of Face Value Rs. 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 30/07/2019

Warkat Linked Nan € i Dak of Face Value Rs, 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 22, 019

Maiket Linked hon Canvertible Debentura of faco Valun . 1,00,000 Lach Redeemabls on 04/09/2019

Marker Linked Nen Convenible Debenture of Face Value Ra. 100,000 fach Redosmabla on 11/09/2019

Market Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Reduemabin on 23/09/2019

Markat Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemabls an 30/09/2019

Market Linkad Non Convertible Debenturs of Face Value Re, 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 15/10/2019

Market Linked Non Canvertible Debenture of Face Value Rr, 1.00,000 Cach Redeeniable an 21/10/2015*

Maiket Linked Noa Convertible Debentuie ef Face Vilus . 1,00,000 Each Red la on 25/10/2018"

Market Linked Non Converiible Debenture of Face Valug Rs. 100,000 Each Redremabls on 29/10/2019

Markat Linked Non Converiible Debeniure of Face Value Rs. i 00,000 Each Redeemable on 04/11/2019*

Markst Linkad Nan Converiible Dabanture of Face Value Rs. 1,00.000 Each Redeemable on 14/11/2019

tdarket Linked Nan Convartibla Dabenture of Face Valus Ry, 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on EB!IIFDIB'

Market Linked Non Canvertllils Debenturs of face Valur M. 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 25/11/2019°

Market Linked Mon Canverible Debenture of Face Value Ay 1,00 000 Esch Redvemable an 20/12/2019

Market Linked Man Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 100,000 Each Redeamable on 18/13/2023

of Face Vajue Rs. 1,00.000 Each Redeemable on 28/12/2023

farhet Linked Han Convertibls Dek aof Face Value Rs, 1,00.000 Each Redeemable on 04/01/2024
Market Linked Non Convertible Debanture of Paco Valun . 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 04/01/2024

Market Linked Non Convenible Debenture of Face Value its. 1,060,000 Each edeomable on 12/01/2024 10.00 |
Markat Linkad Han C bie Debeniure of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Eath Rudeemabla on 18/01/1024 50.00
k of Face Value Rs, 1,00,000 Each Redeemable an 07/03/2024 50,00 |
ble Det of Faca Value Ry 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 14/03/2024 200.00
Market Linked Neh Canvertiblo Dk of Faco Value Ry. 100,000 [ach Redeemable on 06/11/2026 470,00
Markel Unked Non Convenilile Debenture of Face Valua Ra. 1,00,000 Each Red ble on 10/11/2026 170.60
Market Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Ri. 100,600 Each Red ble on 10/11/2016 120.00
Market linked Non Convertlhie Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemabls on 13/11/2028 470.00 |
Market Linked Non Convartible Dok of Face Value Rs 1 00,000 Each Redeemable on 20/11/2028 200,00
Markat Linked Non € ble Dab f Faca Value Ry, 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 23/11/3026 1.368.70
_rgum Linked Nen Canvertibla Dabaniure of Faca Value R 1,00,000 [ach Redeemable on 24/11/2026 130,00
Market Linked Nen Convertible Debenture of Face Value fla. 1,00,000 [sch Red ble on 27/11/2026 £90.00
Market Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Red blo on 27/11/2016 130.00 |
Market Linked Non Canveriible Debenture of Face Valie As. 100,000 Esch Aedeemabla on 01/13/2036 1,041.00 |
Harkst Linked Non Conyerilile Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemable on 84/12/2028 1.160.00
Markot Linked tlon Eonvertible Dabenture of Face Valus Rs, 1,00.000 Each Redeemable on 04/12/2026 920,00
Market Linked Nan Canvertible Dok af Faco Valus Re, 100,000 Cach Redeemable on 08/12/2026 710,00
Market Linked Non Convertible Debenlure of Face Valus fta. 1,00,000 Gach Rad ls on 10/12/2026 436540
Market Linked Mon Convertible Debenture of Face Value Its. 1,00,000 Each Red bla on 16/12/2026 2749.00
Markat Linked Non Canvertible Debenturs of Face Value Rs. 1,060,000 Each Redeemable an 17/13/2026 £0.00
Market Linked Nan C: ble Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00,000 Each Redeemabile on 24/12/2026 626.50 |
Market Linked Han & ble Dt of Face Value Ry 1.00.000 Each Redeemable on 31/12/2026 270,00
Mirket Linked Non Convertible Bk of Face Value Ry. 1.00,000 Each Redesmable on 13/01/2027 460,00
Matket Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Faca Valus Re. 1,00,000 fiach Redeemable on 16/01/2027 70.00
Market Linked Non Convenible Debenture of Face Valug Rs. 1,00,000 Lach Red ble on 05/02/7037 197.00
farket Linked Non Convertible Debenture of Face Value Rs. 1,00 000 Each Redeamable on 07/02/2027 80.00
Market Linked Non © lble Debenture of Face Value Rs. 100,000 Each Redeemable an 05/03/2027 250,00
Markei Linked Non Canvarilble Debanture of Face Value As, 1.00.000 Each Redeemable an 13/03/3027 100.00
18,025,320

amponent of Debt Securitiey
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IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars As at March 31, 2019
(Issue price)
(i) |Perpetual Debt Instruments include % in Mn)
10.00% Subordinated Perpetual Debt of Face Value Rs. 5,00,000 Each Redeemable on 22/02/2027 1,000.00
10.00% Subordinated Perpetual Debt of Face Value Rs. 5,00,000 Each Redeamable on 02/03/2027 500.00
1,500.00
(ii) |Subordinated debt include
11.42% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemahle on 06/06/2022 2,000.00
11.42% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 19/07/2023 750.00
9.10% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable an 13/06/2022 25.36
9.10% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 24/06/2022 100.00
11.42% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 24/06/2022 55.00
11.42% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 30/06/2022 30.00
9.10% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 12/07/2022 10.00
9.10% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 22/07/2022 150.00
11.11% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 175.00
11.18% Subardinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 69.22
11.25% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs, 1000000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 10.00
11.25% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 230.43
11.30% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 70.05
11.33% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 79.76
11.37% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 111.21
11.40% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 20.25
11.45% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 10.25
11.62% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 82.54
12.18% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 49.06
12.28% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 115.22
11.11% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 1000000 Each Redeemable on 10/01/2024 58.00
4,201.35
Particulars As at March 31, 2018

(Issue price)

(l) |Perpetual Debt Instruments include

10.00% Subordinated Perpetual Debt of Face Value Rs. 5,00,000 Each Redeemahle on 22/02/2027

1,000.00
10.00% Subordinated Perpetual Debt of Face Value Rs. 5,00,000 Each Redeemable on 02/03/2027 500.00
1,500.00
(i) [Subordinated debt include
11.42% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 06/06/2022 2,000.00
11.42% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs, 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 13/06/2022 750.00
8.10% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 24/06/2022 100.00
11.42% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 24/06/2022 55.00
11.42% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemahble on 30/06/2022 30.00
9.10% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 12/07/2022 10.00
9.10% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 22/07/2022 150.00
11.11% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 175.00
11.18% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 69.22
11.25% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 10.00
11.25% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 230.43
11.30% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 70.05
11.33% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 79.76
11.37% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 111.21
11.40% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 20.25
11.45% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 10.25
11,62% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 82.54
12.18% Subordinated Dabt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemahle on 02/05/2023 49.06
12.28% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 02/05/2023 115.22
4,117.99
Particulars As at April 1, 2017
(Issue prica)
(i) |Perpetual Debt Instruments include
10.00% Subordinated Perpetual Debt of Face Value Rs. 5,00,000 Each Redeemable on 22/02/2027 1,000.00
10.00% Subordinated Perpetual Debt of Face Value Rs. 500,000 Each Redeemable on 02/03/2027 500.00
1,500.00
(ii) |Subordinated debt include
.. 1|9.50 % Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 06/06/2022 2,000.00
” ¥ [=—{9:50'% Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 13/06/2022 750.00
~~3.10 % Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 24/06/2022 100.00
= clAr[H 42 %Subordinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 24/06/2022 55.00
ACPUUTINGR ¥ Sybardinated Debt of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 Each Redeemable on 30/06/2022 30.00
c/ 2,935.00
-

P>




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 20. Other Financial Liabilities (Zin Mn)
h 31,
Particulars Asat 2"02: As at March 31, 2018| As at April 1, 2017
Interest accrued but not due 2,320.00 1,334.73 485.40
Payable to customers " 20.95 15.44
Payable on account of purchase of investments 269.10 - -
Payable to holding company / group companies 27.87 16.76 15.65
Others 73.08 27.21 -
Total 2,690.05 1,399.65 520.49

Note 20.1: No amount was required to be transferred in Investor Education and Protection fund account as per
Section 125 of Companies Act, 2013 on account of unclaimed dividend and unclaimed dues on account of NCDs.

Note 21. Provisions: (T in Mn)
As at March 31,

Particulars 2019 As at March 31, 2018| As at April 1, 2017

Provision for employee benefits 4.16 4.88 1.17

(b) Others (specify nature) - = =

Total 4.16 4.88 1.17

Note 22. Other Non Financial Liabilities: (T in Mn)
As at March 31

Particulars stin " |As at March 31, 2018/ As at April 1, 2017

Statutory remittances 7.60 8.81 0.42

Total 7.60 8.81 0.42
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IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 23A. Other Equity:

(T in Mn)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 | As at March 31, 2018 | Asat Aprll 1, 2017
Securities premium 11,558.34 6,993.78 5,993,758
General reserve 143 1.43 1.43
Special reserve pursuant to section 45 IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 879.25 516.29 204.25
Capital Redemption Reserve 2.30 2.30 2.30
Retained earnings 3,512.57 2,060.72 939.50
Total 15,953.89 9,574.52 8,141.26




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financlal Statemants for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 24. Interast Income

{Tin Mn)
2018-19 2017-18
Interest Income on financial Intorost Income
pardiirias Dl:sllnanclal g| Onfinancial | on financial assets assats on finandal o fianclal
ass;: ';:::::r assets measured | classified at fair Total measured at | assats measurad BS;:I;IC:?’:T::I Tatal
thruugh ocl at amortised cost | value through fair value |at amortised cost it i
profit or loss through OCI ugh profit or
loss

Intarast on loans = 5,105.15 2 £,1058.15 - 5,310.62 - 5,310.62
Intarest Incame from investmants - 2 3_5?_:13 497.43 - E 1,153.88 1,152 88
Interest on deposits with banks - 53,28 - 53,28 . 15289 z 152.80
Other interest income - 0.52 - 0.52 . 1.33 = 133 |
Total . 6,158.95 397.43 6,556.38 - 5,464.84 1,152.88 6,617.72
Note 25. Dividend & Distribution income on investmants {Tin Mn
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Dividend Income 12.32 10.41
Distributlon income on investments 5.64 269.51
TOTAL L&!E 279.92
Note 26. Fee and Commission Income {ZInMn
Partlculars 2018-19 2017-18
Distribution fees, commission and related incoma 42.85 155,81
TOTAL a2.85 16581
Nota 27. Nat Galn/loss On Falr Value Change:- (T in Mn})
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
{A} Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss

- Investments 622.28 675.77

- Derlvatives {143.43) (28.70)
Total net gain/{loss) on falr value changes (B) 478.85 650.07
{€) Fair value changes:

Realised 495,73 787.40

-Unrealised (1e.88) (137.34)
Tatal net gain/ (log2) on fair value changes(C) to
|tally with (8) 478.85 650.06
Note 28. Other Income {T in Mn)
Partleulars 2018-19 2017-18
Miscellaneous Income = 0.04
Total - 0.04 |




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

Naotes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 29, Finance Cost

{Z1n Mn)
2016-19 2017-18

Particulars On financlal llabllitles | On financial liabilities On financial labifitles (On financial labilities

measured at falr value measured at Total measured at fair value measured at Tatal

through profit or loss amortised cost through profit or loss amortised cost
Interest an bqrrowlr!g._s - 2,183.98 2,183.98 = 3,216.47 3,216.47
Interest on debt sacurlties (40.23) 1,463,52 1,423.29 933,08 642.79 1,575.87
Interest on suberdinated liabilities - 567.52 567.52 . 476.43 476.43
Other Finance Costs 3 4288 42.98 . 58.74 58.74
Total [40.23) Q‘IEB.UO 4,217.77 933@8 4,3584.43 5,327.51
Note 30. iImpairment On Financial Instruments (T In Mn)

2018-19 2017-18
On financial On fi
On financial Instrumaents 4 ednclab On financial

Particulars Instruments Instruments

measured at fair value Instruments measured

maasurod at measured at fair
threugh OCI at amortlsod cost
amortised cost | valua through OCI

On leans - (75.56) - 135.77
Total - (75.56) - 135.77
Note 31. Employee Benefit Expanses {TIn Mn)
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Salarles and wages 58.10 175.05
Contribution ta provident and other funds 3.93 2.51
Share based payments ta employees 1.24 1.95
stall welfare expenses 145 0.25
Gratuity expens (Refar Note 31.1) 1.21 0.67
Leave encashment {2.02) 141
Total 63,91 181.84




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

31.1. Gratuity Abridged Disclosure Statement as Per Indlan Accounting Standard 19 {Ind AS 19) For the year ended 31st March 2019

(% in Mn)

Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018

Type of benefit Gratuity Gratuity

| Country India India

Reporting currancy INR INR

Indian Accounting Standard 19 | Indian Accounting Standard 19

Reporting standard {Ind AS 19) (Ind AS 19)

Funding status Unfunded Unfunded

Starting period 01-Apr-18 01-Apr-17

Date of reporting 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Pariod of reporting 12 Months 12 Months
Assumptions (F.Y 2017-2018)

Expected return on plan assets N.A. N.A,
| Rate of discounting 7.80% 7.26%

Rate of salary increase 7.50% 5.00%

Rate of employee turnover

For service 4 years and below
15% p.a. & thereafter 7.50% p.a.

For service 4 years and below
7.50% p.a. & thereafter 5% p.a

Mortality rate during employment

Indian Assured Lives Mortality

Indian Assured Lives Mortality

{2006-08) (2006-08)
Mortallty rate after employment N.A. N.A.
Assumptions (F.Y 2018-2019)
| Expected return on plan assets N.A, NA
Rate of discounting 7.64% 7.80%
Rate of salary increase 7.50% 7.50%

Rate of emplayee turnover

For service 4 years and below
15% p.a. & thereafter 7.50% p.a.

For service 4 years and below
15% p.a. & thereafter 7.50% p.a.

Mortality rate during employment

Indlan Assured Lives Mortality
(2006-08)

Indian Assured Lives Maortality
{2006-08)

Mortality rate after employmant

N.A.

N.A,

Table showing change in the prasent value of projected benefit obligation

Present value of benafit obligation at the beginning of the period

2.63 0.65
Interest cost 0.21 0.05
Current service cost 1.00 0.63
| Past service cost - -
Liability transferred in/ acquisitions 0.05 0.82
(Liabllity transferred out/ divestments) (0.16) (0.02)
{Gains)/ losses on curtallment . -
(Liabilities extinguished an settlament)
(Benefit paid directly by the employer) .
(Benefit paid from the fund) =
The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates = N
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to change in
| demographic assumptions - (0.25)
Actuarlal (gains)/losses on obligations - due to change in
financial assumptions i s
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to experlence 0.37 0.35
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the perlod 4.16 2.63
Amount recognized in the balance sheet
(Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the period) {4.16) (2.63)]
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the periad - -
Funded status (surplus/ (deficit)) (4.16) (2.63)
Net (liability)/asset recognized in the balance shest (4.16) {2.63)
Net Interest cost for current period
Present value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the period 2.63 0,65
{falr value of plan assets at the beginning of the periad) - -
Net liability/{asset) at the beglnning 2.63 0.65
Interast cost 0.21 0.05
Hinterest income) - -
Eﬁéﬂhi@@t cost for current period 0.21 0.05




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

| Expenses recognized in the statement of profit or loss for current period

Current service cost 1.00 0.63
Net Interest cost 0.21 0.05
Past service cost - 4
{Expected contributions by the employees) - m
{Gains)/losses on curtailments and settlements - =
Net effect of changes in foreign exchange rates - 5
Expensas racognized 1.21 0.67
Expenses recognized in the other comprehensive Income (OCH) for current period

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the perlod 0.43 0.51
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income = -
Change in asset ceiling - 7
Net (income)/expanse for the period recognized in oci 0.43 0.51
Balance sheet reconciliation

Opening net liability 2.63 0.65
Expenses recognized in statement of profit or loss 1.21 0.67
Expenses recognized in OC| 0.43 0.51
Net liability/(asset) transfer in 0.05 0.82
Net (liability)/asset transfer out {0.16) (0.02)
(Benefit paid directly by the employer) - i
(Employer's contribution) - B
Net liability/(asset) recognized in the balance sheet 4.16 2.63
Other details =

No of active members 37 40
Per month salary for active members 3.04 2.89
Welghted average duratlon of pbo 11 11
Average expected future service 8 8
Projected benefit obligation (pbo) 4.16 2.63
Prescribed contribution for next year (12 manths) i 3
Maturity analysis of the benefit payments

1st following year 0.10 0.09
2nd following year 0.15 0.09
3rd following year 0.34 0.12
4th following year 0.37 0.23
Sth following year 0.38 0.24
Surn of years 6 to 10 1.98 1.28
Sum of years 11 and above 6.47 4.66 |
Sensitivity analysis

PBO on current assumptions 4.16 2.63
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting {0.35) (m
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting 0.41 0.27
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase 0.31 0.23
Delta effect of -1% change In rate of salary increase (0.30) (0.22)
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover {0.04) (0.03)
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover 0.03 0.03

The above mentioned plans are valued by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financlal Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

31.2 Defined Contribution Plans:
The Group has recognised the following amounts as an expense and included in the Employee Benefit Expensas.

(T in Mn)
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Contribution to provident fund 3.93 2.51
Contrlbution to ESIC - 0.01
Contribution to labour welfare fund < .
Total 3.93 2.52 |

The Company contributes ta recognised provident fund for qualifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company is
required to contribute specified percentage of payroll costs te fund the benefits.

Naote 32, Other Expenses:-

{Tin Mn)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Operating expenses 22.60 22.46
Rent and energy cost 16.63 16.27
Insurance = 0.43
Repairs & maintenance 0.16 (1.85)
Marketing, advertisement and business promotion expenses 0.42 0,61
Travelling & conveyance 6.81 6.30
Legal & professlonal fees 3231 25.56
Communigatlon 2.08 2.43
Software charges / Technology cost 6.31 3.86
Office & other expenses 40.33 43,19
Directors' fees and commission 2.55 3.08
Remuneration to Auditors :

Audit fees (net of G5T input credit) 1.94 1.62

Certification expenses 0.33 033

Out Of pocket expenses 0.01 0.22
Corporate social responsibility expenses & donation {Refer Note 38) 24.54 11.00
Total 157.02 135.52




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 33. Income taxes
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 "Income Taxes"

(a) Major components of tax expense/ (income) (T in Mn)
$r. No. |Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Statement of Profit and Loss:
(a) Profit and Loss section:
(i) Current Income tax :
Current income tax expense 896.03 515.00
896.03 515.00
(i) Deferred Tax:
Tax expense on origination and reversal of temporary differences 20.26 (27.64)
20.26 {27.64)
Income tax expense reported In the statement of profit or loss [{i}+(ii)] 916.29 487.36
(b} Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section:
(i) Iterns not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
(A) Current tax expense/(income):
On re-measurement of defined benefit plans N N
(B) Deferred tax expense/(income):
On re-measurement of defined benefit plans 0.15 0.18
0.15 0.18
Income tax expensa reported in the other comprehensive Incoma [(i)+(ii)] 0.15 0.18
(b) Reconciliation of Income tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by damestic tax rate applicable in India: {Zin Mn)
5r. No. |Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
(a) |Profit/(loss) before tax 2,731.37 1,920.96
{b) |Income tax expense at tax rates applicable including deferred tax 954.45 554,01
(c) |() Tax on income subject to lower tax rate
(A) Gains on Investments (including fair valuation) (32.06) (32.06)
(d) |(ii) Tax on Income exampt from Tax
(A) Income from Investments (Including tax sufferred income on investment in AIF) (5.57) (11.12)
{iii) Tax on expense not tax deductible
(A) Expenses not allowable as tax deductible as per tax laws 4.64 2.87
(Iv) Tax effect of losses of current year on which no deferred tax benefit is recognised 0.08
(v) Effect on deferred tax due to change In Income tax 2 (28.24)
(vi) Tax effact on various other items (5.17) 182
Total effact of tax adjustments [(i) to (v}] [38.16) (66.65)
(e) |Tax expense recognised during the year 916.29 487.36
Effective tax rate 33.55% 25.37%




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 34. Earnings Per Share:

Basic and diluted earnings per share ["EPS”] computed In accordance with INDAS 332 ‘Earnings per share”.

(X in Mn)
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Face value of equity shares In ¥ fully pald up 10.00 10.00
BASIC
Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss A 1,815.08 1,433.62
Weighted average number of shares subscribed B 291.81 262.45
Face value of equity shares (in ¥) fully paid 10.00 10.00
Basic EPS (T) A/B 6.22 5,46
DILUTED
Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss A 1,815.08 1,433.62
Weighted average number of shares subscribed B 291.81 262.45
Add: Potential equity shares on account of conversion of employee stack ¢ i
option i
Weighted average number of shares outstanding D=B+C 291.81 262.45
Diluted EPS (%) A/D 6.22 5.46
Note 35, Capital, Other Commitments and Contingent Liabilities at Balance Sheet date:
Capital and Other Commitments (¥ in Mn)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 | As at March 31, 2018
Commitments on investments 1,904.08 55,65
Total 1,904.08 55.65
Contingent Liabillities (% in Mn)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 | As at March 31, 2018
In respect of Income tax demand * 9.37 =
Total 9.37 -

* Amount paid under protest with respect to income tax demand ¥ 1.88 million
Management believes that the ultimate outcome of above matters will not have a material adverse impact on its financlal position,
results of operatlons and cash flows. In respect of above matters, future cash outflows in respect of contingent liabilities are
determinable only on receipt of judgements pending at various authorities.
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IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 36. The Company operates from and uses the premises, infrastructure and other facilities and services as provided to it by its
holding company/group companies, which are termed as ‘Shared Services'. Hitherto, such shared services consisting of administrative
and other revenue expenses paid for by the Company were identified and recovered/recoverable from the Company based on
reasonable management estimates, which are constantly refined in the light of additional knowledge gained relevant to such estimation.
These expenses are recovered on an actual basis and the estimates are used only where actual expenses were difficult to determine.

Note 37. Undisbursed Sanctioned Loans

As on the balance sheet date there were undisbursed sanctioned loans of ¥ 38,901.19 million (Previous Year T 36,787.70 million). These
undisbursed sanctioned amounts are cancellable at the option of the Company.

Note 38. Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year , the Company has spent ¥ 24.54 million as against T 24.54 million required to be spent as per section 135 of the
Companies Act 2013 in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). The Company was focused on implementing long term high
impact projects approved by the CSR Cammittee. The Company is committed to supporting development of the cauntry by contributing
to achieving the sustainable development goals and all its activities are directed towards this. Going farward these projects will be

consolidated and scaled to achleve a larger and deeper impact. The key facus areas includes malntenance of environmental
sustainability, education and health areas.

Note 39, Segment Reporting

In the opinion of the management, there Is only one reportable business segment (Financing & Investing in connection with Wealth
Management and Lending business) as envisaged by Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments', as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.
Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segment reporting is required to be made in the financial statements of the Company. Secondary
segment based on geography has not been presented as the Company operates primarily in India and the Company perceives that there
is no significant difference in its risk and returns in operating from different geographic areas within India.




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE UMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Yaar ended March 31, 2019

Note 40. Rolated Party Disclosures:
Related party disclosuras [or tho year snded 31st March, 2019

a) List of Related Partles:

{Nature of relationship Nalg_n-of party
Director/ Key Managerial Parsonal Mr. Himanshu Jain, CEO and Whole time Director
Mr. Yatin Shah, Non tive Director

Mr. Shantanu Rastagi, Non-sxecutive Director
Dr. 5. Narayan, Non-executive Diracter (Independent Director)

Ms. Rekha Warriar, Non-executive Diractor (Indepandent Directar)
Helding Company IIFL Wealth Managomant Limited _
Other Related Partles *
{Uitimate Holding Campany upte Aprll 01, 2018) it Haldings fmited
|IFL Asset Management Limited
.IFI. Ihv‘ﬂw\llser and Trusteo Servicas l.lMllu_d_
IIFL Trusstas Limited
IIFL Alternate Asset Advisars Limited
\IFL Distribution Services Limited £y
IIFL. Wealth Securities IFSC Limited {w.e.f June 22, 2018)
IIFL, Waalth Advisors (India) Limited (w.o.f November 22, 2018)
[IFL Altiore Advisars Private Limited (w.e.f Hovembar 05, 2018)
|UFL Wealth Employee Benafit Trust {w.e.f August 01, 2018)
Fellow Subsidiaries IIFL Private Wealth Management (Dubal) Limitae
IIFL {Asla) Pte, Limitad
IIFL Inc.

\IFL. Private Wealth Hong Kong Limited

IIFL Assot Managemant [Mauritius) Limited (Formerly IIFL Private Wealth (Mauritius) Lid)

IIFL Private Wealth (Sulssa) 5A (upta Feb 28, 2019)

IIFL Securitles Pta. Limitad

IIFL Capital {Canada) Umnited
IIIFI. Capltal Pta. Limited

IIFL Securities Limited (Formaily known as Indla Infoling Limited)
mm“ a3 India Infaling Commaditias Limited)
India Infoline Finance Limited R
1IFL Home Finance Limited

IFL Insurance Brokars Limlted (Formerly knawn as Indis Infallne Insurance Brokars Limited)
\IFL Managemant Sarvices Limited [Formerly Indfa Infoline Insurance Services Uimitad
|IFL Wealth {UK) Limite

Other Related Partins *
[Group Companles upto April 01, 2018)

IIFL Facilitlos Services Limited {Formerly knawn as TFL Real Estate Limited)
Clara Dovalapers Private Limited —
5 Micrafinance Limited {w.e.f March 01, 2017)
Ayuiha Dalry Private

FL Asset RI._erc,uns‘uul:llun Urmnited {w.a,f Mux 09, 2017}
Mr, Karan Mat

Mr. Amit Shah {resigned w.e.f. January 24, 2019)

er. Nirmal Jain
Mr. Venkataraman Rajamanl

|Ganeral Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte Limited

Ms. Shilpa Bhagat (Spouse of Mr. Karan Bhagat)

| Ma. Madhu Jain {Spouse of Mr, Nirmal Jain}

Mr. Prakashchandra Shah (Relativa af Mr. Yatin Shah)
india Infallne Foundation
Kyrush Invastmanta
Kyrush Realty Private Limited
‘kykh Realty Privata Limitad
[

ndla Alternatives investment Advisors Privata Limited [Follow Subsidlary Upto March 31,
Yatin Investmant

[Orphacus Trading Private Limited
Ardent Impax Private Limited

Other relsted parties Spalsa Capital Limited

Spalsa P2P Limited

Spaisa Insurance Brokers Limited

MHN] Consultants Private Limited
[Sundar Bhawar Ventures Private Limited

sunder Bhanwar Haliday Hame Private Limited [ Upte Mar 04, 2018]
Mumm Firm of Pr. Nilsah Vikamsey)
Yatln Prakash Shah {HUF} o A 2
Nirmal Madhu Family Privata Trust

Kalki Family ri'vutu_lLu“Et
|lcusE Farnlly Privata Trust
[®yra Family Privats Trust
Bhagat Family Private Trust

&msh Famlly Privata Trust

MNaykia Famnlly Private Trust
Prakash Shah Family Private Trust

Maysa Shah Family Private Trust
Klaah Sha F-Ii‘ﬂ"y Private TI‘\_.I.!i
* Date of Demerger — 1 April 2018 baing the appointed date In terms of the Composite Schame of Arrangement amongst Indla nfsline Einance Limitad ("IIFL Finance™), lIFL
Haldings Limitad (*lIFL Heldings™), Indla Infoline Madia and Roseareh Sarvices Limited {"lIEL MER"), WFL Sacuritles Umited {“IIFL Securitins”), IIFL Wealth Management Limited {“1IFL
Wealth") and IIFL Distribution Sarvices Limited ["IFL Distrlbution®), and thelr raspactiva sharehelders, under Sections 230 - 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013 {"Schame") approved by the Board of Directors of tha Helding Company at its meeting held an January 31, 2018, and approvad by the National Company Law Tribunal
Bench at Mumbal (Tribunal) an March 07, 2019 under the applicable provisions of the Campanles Act, 2013,




FL WLALTH FINANCE LIMITED

Naotes forming part of Financlal Statements for the Year cnded March 31,2019

Nate 40. Ralated Party Diselosures:

Related party disclasuras fer the yaar ended 315t March, 2019
b) significant Transactions with Related Parties

(T 1n Mn)
Nature of Transaclion Key Managerial Holding Company  (Othar Ralatoed|Fellow Subsidiaries| Other Related Partles Other Related Total
Person |Parties * *(Group Companies Parties
(Ultimate Halding upta April 01, 2018)
Company upto Aprll
ni FnIst
Share Capital [ssued
IIFL Wealth Management Limited . 430.44 - . . 430.44
[1FL wealth Management Limited - 4,569.56 . - - N 4,569.86
Loans Glven
Karan Bhagat d = 2 . - 157.70 157.70
- - . - (150.00) {150.00}
Yatin Shah 59.20 : : C - = 59.20
{150.11) - . S : = {150.11)
Nirmal Jaln - - - - . 1,507,72 1,507.72
= - = * {2,764.49) 2,764.49)
Venkataraman RaJamanl - - - = - ,500.00 1 .
x . E . - (2,505.88 ,505.88)
Madhu Jain : 4 x - - ,507.72 ,507.72
= : - = - {1,255.96) (1,255.96)
Loan Received Back
Karan Bhagat . - : : 3 = =
. - N {150.00} (1sn.m1r
Yatin Shah z : 2 : - -
{150.11) : . * = - (150.11)
Nirmal Jain - = - . 1507.72 1507.72
s = - |1‘764.42]_ IZ 754.43)
Venkataraman Rajamani = - . 1,500.00 1,500.00
- : - * - (2,505.88) {2,505.88)
Madhu Jain = = 3 - 1,502.72 1,507.72
= Py = B . {1,255.96) {1,255.96)|
ICO Glven
IIFL investment Adviser & Trustes . = - 2,710 - . 2,710.00
- . - 1584.00) - * (568.00)
1IFL Distribution Services Limitad = = = 31.80 - = 3180
IIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited C - = 35,000.70 - B 15 .000.70
. : - (2,720.00) - . (2,720.00)|
IIFL Asiet Manangement Limited - = = 150.00 - - 190,00
- - . {2,112.99) : - {2,112.99)
|IIFL Wealth Manangement Limited - 22,684.25 x - - - 22,684.35 |
. (12,338.33) = - - : (12,338.33)
|IIFL Trustes Limited r : 5 100 - : 1.00
|
\CD Recelved Back
IIFL Investment Adviser & Trustee = - - 2,710.00 - = 2,710.00
\Sarvicus Limited : £ (558,00} - : 564,60
1IFL Disteibutian Services Limited 2 : . il.80 - - 3180
IIFL Alternate Asset Advisars Limited : = ad 36,460.70 : - 36,450.70
= - - t1.25c|.uu' ¥ . {1 1m,m|
IHFL Asset Manangement Limited . - - 340.00 - - lmﬂ_
- . - {1,962.99) - . {1,962.09)
IIFL Waalth Manangement Limited - 22,390.39 . - . < 21,390.99
- [12,049.49) - - * - {12,043.49)
WIFL Trustee Limited = & = 100 = - 1.00
|
WIFL Investment Adviser & Trustee - [ . #414.80 - - 414.80
IIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited = - - 70,60 - 70.60 |
lIFL Asset Manangemant Limited - = - 268.30 - . 268.30
. . - {464.00) - : {464.00)
1IFL Wailth Manangement Limited - 44,978.07 . - - - 44,978.07
- {140,755.00 . - : - (140,735.00)
IIFL Trustee Limitad - 5 L2 0.00 - - 0.00
HFL Investment Advlser & Trustee - = - 414.80 - - 414,80
|sgrvices Umited = = - - = = =
IIFL Altarnate Asset Advisars Limited b - : 58.60 . - 58,60
IIFL Asset Manangemant Limited - - - 268.30 * - 268.30
= - - (4E4.00) 3 ] {a64.06)
IIFL Wealth M gement Limited . 44,978.07 - - - . 44,978.07 |
- {140,795.00! = - - % [140,795,00)
WFL Trusten Limited - - | : 0.00 - * 0.00




|IFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

Notes farming part of Fnanclal Statements for the Yaar anded March 31, 2019

MNote 40, Related Party Disclosures:

Rolatad party diselosuras for the year end

ed 31st March, 2019

oL U
nt: & an Loans
Karan Bhogat > : - - 0.14 0.14
b - G = {o.a5) (0,45)
Yatin Shah 0.05 - = : 0.05
{1.08) 3 . - . (1.08)
Nirmal Jain . - - 272 2.72
. - s - (5.99] {5.59)
Venkataraman Rajamani = s = 272 2,72
= . - . [4.84) {4.84)
Madhu Jain - : - 272 .72
% 2 C 2 {2.45)} (2.35)
interest income on €D
IIFL Investment Adviser & Trustee = - 391 - = 391
sarul itad ¥ B (0.51) : 2 (0.52))
IFL Distribution Services Uimited = . 0.00 . - 0.00
IIFL Altarnate Assot Advisors Limited = 3 11640 - a 116.40
a - 3.46] = . _1345!
IIFL Asset Manangement Limited : - 043 - : 0.43
- . 0.93 - - 10.98)|
|IFL Wealth Manangement Limited - 74.97 < “ N 74.07
- (25.73) - . % (25.73)
IIFL Trustes Limited 5 - 0.00 : B 0.00
terest Expense on ICD
IIFL Investment Adviser & Trustee & . 012 = - 0,42
IFL Altarnata Assat Adviiers Limitad s t D.0% z - T3
IIFL Asset Manangement Limited . - 0.08 - 3 0.08 |
- : (0.24) - = (0.24)
IIFL Wealth Manangemant Limited - 08.88 2 o - 56,89 |
- (230.93) - : - {230.53
Purchase of investment
|IFL Wealth Management Limited . s . - [ -
= (0.19) ki - i (0:19]
IIFL Altarnate Asiat Adviiors Limited = = 3477.63 . - 3,477.63 |
iy A {0.08) - . {0.06)
NCD Bought Back
IIFL Wealth Management Limited - 4,705.08 < : 2 4,705.08
IIFL Altarnata Asset Advisaes Limited - - 1,153;36 - = 1,782.36
Samasta Mierafinance Limited d = 995_.11_5 - 995.45
Indla Infoline Finance Limited . - C 353.92 = 353.92
IIFL Home Finance Limited E . - 382.74 38229
Redemption of NCD
India Infoline Finance Limited = - = 65.25 = B5.25
I
IFL Waalth Managamant Limited [ 12,52 . - . 11.5_2_
IFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited - - LSQ}.N s - 2303.00 |
IIFL Waalth Managemani Limited . - o - . -
lIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited - = 151.61 - - 151.61
L0t
India Infoling Finanes Limited : + ¥ : 2.26
Interest Expense on NCD
IIFL Wealth Management Limited T 583 - - 5.83 |
> (6.82) - - |6.82)
(IFL Altarnata Asset Advisars Limited e - 5,098 - 5.09 |
Remuneration to Dirgctor
Himanshu Jain 26.62 - d * 16.62
(23.17) 2 3 = (23.17)
Yatin Shah u : # L. =
{0.08) - - - =
ing F 1
Rakha Warriar 1.04 - a - 1.04
S Narayan 1.68 - : = 1.68




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Finandlal Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 40. Related Party Dlsclosures:
Relatod party diselosures far tha year ended 313t March, 2019

SRR AL I
Fang/Expendes Incuried/Relmbursed For
1IFL Distribution Services Limited

. - 45.43 - - 45.43
- {28.84) - : {38.84)
Redemption Expense
IFL Managemant Servicas Limlted - e - = n A =
. - - R 0.44 3 T0.44) |
NIFL Facilities Services Limited = - = - - - _44
b = = A (0.24) 3 (0.24)
Carporate §ng!| Respong h“ﬂ! {c5R)
Indla infoline Foundation Limited - ¥ = - 24.54 24.54
= = . 3 - {10.78) {10.75)
IFL Distribution Services Limited * - - 0.24 - - 0.24
=z = = (048) = - (.48
1IFL Waalth Managemant Limited - 25.16 X ‘ = i 516
= (22.27) p : Z . o
Other funds pald = g
|IFL Wealth Management Limited . 9231 + - - - 931
: (7.84) 2 - : - 7.84)|
IIFL Distribution Services Limited - = = 1.20 = - tl..m‘

£ 0.06] - i
IIFL Securities Limited {Fermarly Indla - = o . i . Iﬂ;ﬂﬁ)
2 2 & - (0.01) - {0.01)
[ved
IIFL Waalth Managemeant Limited fa = - - - -
x {0.02)

WIFL Asset Managamant Umitad - . - - - lD;W)
L] = : 10.07) : - 0.07
|IIFL Distribution Services Limited . - - 0.05 . - 0.05
I = - 5 {1.08) . - {1.08)]
{h) Amaunt due te / from related partles {Closing Balances):
Mature of Transaction Koy Managarial Holding Company  |Other Rolated|Fallow Subsidlaries| Other Ralated Parties Other Related Total
Persan Partles * *(Group Companies Parties
(Ultimate Halding| upto April 01, 2018)
|Campany upte April
Fl.l_llllm
tsundey gayvables
IIFL Distribution Saiviess Limited - = = - - = -
x - . (8.74) & : 1.74)
IIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited = 4 d 17.57 = - 17.57
HFL Waalth Management Limited - 10.31 - - : IDT 1
- (10.07) - - - . [20.07)
\aundrv receivables
1IFL Distribution Services Limited - - = 1.44 - = 144
IIFL Asset Managamant Limited - - - - .
: - - {0.11) - - X
IIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited = - - - B F (ﬂ_nl
= 3 = 0.33) = - (0.33)
IIFL Investment Adviser & Trustee = : 3 l.t;.'.!l:l - - 0.20
3 . B (0.20 - . {0.20)
IIFL Management Sarvices Limited - - . = 072 = 0,72
IIFL Socuritios Limiled (Farmerly india = : - . - . -
- - - : (0.26) . [0.26)
IIFL Distributian Services Limited - : - 10.16 - - 1016
- 3 = (0.15) . - X
India infoline Commadities Limited - - - - - - WAEL
- 3 z z {0.03) . 0.0
1CD Taken
IIFL Alternata Assot Advisars Limited s = . 12.00 - . 12,00
IIFL Weslth Management Limited - 582.10 - . B : 582,10
5 (288.84) B . - . MI
IIFL Asset Managamant Limited = = s = - = d
E : : {150.00) - - mﬁi
(IFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited . - - - . - . =
g £ = {1,460,00) : - (1,450.00}
Jkum Bhagat - . - : - 157.70 157.70
Yatin Shah 59.20 = : - H'lﬂ

¢ '.\'\ﬂ_”c«s
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1IFL, WEALTH FINANCE UMITEQ
Notes farming part of Financlal Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 41. Disclosure Pursuant to ind AS 107 "Financial instruments: Disclosures”
Financial Risk Management
41A.1. Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to risk that a countarparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting In financial lass to the Company. Credit risk assassemant on varlous componants 15 deseribed below:

1) Landing operations = Loans

The Lending Operatians of the Company has a well-definad framework within which credit risk is assumed, managad and monitored. Credit risk managoment functlon closely overseas management and

contral of credit risks and associated aparational risks. The credit proposals are ovaluated having regard ta specifled prudent axpesurs limits and appraved by the apprepriate authority, approved by the
Baard af Diractors [the Board) of the entity engaged in lending business , The rlsk management policies including expasure limits are defined and reviawsd alang with the Board.

The Company sanctions and monitars the loan based on undurlylng security offered by borrower. The Company has not Implemented the system far eradit grading of borrowers since most of (ts

lendings
are against liquid collaterals. In order to manage credit risk, Loan to Value (LTV) ratie is ducldad/re-pdjusted at the time of sanction and an angaing basis at the time of manitaring of loan.

Tha carrying amount of Loans arising from lending businass which may be subject to credit risk are as per table balow:

(% In Mn
Loans to customer: r 2018- Mar 2019
Financial assets where | Financlal assets for which Financlal assets for Purchased or
loss allowance cradit risk hos Increased | which creditrisk has | eriginated credit-
maasurad at slgnificantly and credit not| incraased significantly | impaired financial
Partlculars 12-manth ECL Impalrad and credit impaired a3sets (POCI) Total
_If_nm" 49,107.60 - = - 49,107.60
Total gross Cirminl amount 49,107.60 - = - 49,107,60
Lois allowance {228.00] - - - 228.
Carrying amount 48,879.60 - - - 48,879.60
* Excluding intercorparata deposits, Staff Loan and Loan ta €BLO
R 1% In Min)
Loans to customens - Apr 2017- Mar 2018
(== Financlal assets whara | Financial assets for which | Financial assats for Purchased or
loss sllowance credit risk has Increased which eredit risk has originated eradit-
measured at significantly and credit not| increased significantly | Impalred financial
Partlculars 12-manth [CL Impaired and credit Impalred assals {POCI) Total
Loans® 68,341.30 . - - 6834130 |
Total gross earrylng amount £8,341.30 . - - £8,331.30
Lass allawanco (303.56) - - - ISDB.SE!{
Carrylng amount 68,037.74 - - = 68,037.74
* Excluding Intercorporats dapaiiti and Loan to COLG
(T in Mn!
Loans {o custamerns As At 1st April 2017
Financial assets where | Financial assets for which Finanelal assets for Purchased or
loss allowance eradit risk has increased | which credit sk has | orlginated credit-
measured at significantly and credit not| increased significantly | impaired financial
|_ Particulars 12-month ECL Impaired and credit Impaired assets (POCI) Total
36,648.91 - - . 36,648.91
36,648.91 - - = 36,648.51
{167.74)’ - . - (157.78)
36,481.13 . - - 3648113
* Excluding Intercorparata deposits and Loan to CBLO
Reconcillation of Expected Credit Loss/ Impairment Loss allowance with regards to lending operations for F.Y 18-19 is as follows Z in Mn)
Financlal assats where | Financiol assets for which | Financial assets for Purchased or
loss allowance credit risk has Incroased which eredit risk has originated credit-
measured at significantly and credit not| Increased signifieantly | impaired financial
Particulars 12-month ECL impaired and eredit impaired assets (POCH) Total
Loss allowance as at 01.04.2018 301.56 - = - 303.56
Provision on loans originated during the yaar §7.12 . ) } _—
Net changa in provision on continuing loans {72.59) 4 i 2 (71.58))
Pravision on leans derecognised during the year (9.0 R . . (69,09
Loss allowance asat 31.03.2019 228.00 - - - 228,00
Reconclliation of losn 1oss reserves with regards to lending operations for F.Y 17-18 15 as follows {Tin Mn)
Financlal assets where | Financial assets forwhich | Financlal assets for Purchased or
loss allowance credit risk has Incraated | which oeditriskhas | eriginated credit-
measured at significantly and credit not| Incraased significantly | Impaired financial
Particulars 12-month ECL Impalred and credit impalred assets (POCH) Total
Loss allowance a3 at 01.04.2017 167.78 - - = 167.78
Provision on loans ariginated during the year 134,04 . . : 134,04
Net change in provislon an cantinuing loans 14.74 = . - 14.74
Provision on Inans derecognised during tha year {13.01) g - : (1.0
Loss allowance o3 at 31.03.2018 303.55 . - - 301,55

In additian to laans from lending business, the company has outstanding loans under CBLO arrangement,staff and Holding company/Fellow subsidiaries. The company hai not made any pravisian an ECL as
credit risk |5 considered insignificant

Credit cancentration and gradation

The company providas lsans malnly te High Net worth Individuals (HNIs) against securitios/collaterals in the form of finacial Instruments (Loans against Sacuritics - LAS), The Campany does not have a
slgnificant concentralion with regard to single/graup borrowar and Industry.

The Company sanctions and monitars these loans based an underlying securities. in arder 1o manage credit risk Loan ta Value {representing valua af sucuritias/collateral against the loans outstanding) Is
declded/re-ad]usted at tha tima af sanction and an ongoing basis as a aprt of monitoring of loans.

~
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HIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITID
Notes forming part of Finaneial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 41, Disclosure Pursuant to Ind AS 107 "Financlal instruments: Disclosures”

2) Trade racelvables, Other recelvables and Othar Financial Assats

The Company’s Trade and Othur racatvables primarily include receivables from mutual funds an redmption of Its investments. The Company has detailed raview meeh f g such racaivabl
periadieally, Based on the provision matrix adopted by the Campany, no provision has been made as the Compiny considers credit risk arising from such receivables ta be Insigaificant in view of historical

experience In their collectian,
Cradit Risk on Other Financial assats [s considored insignificant considering the natura of such assots and abience of counterparty risk,

3) Othary

In addition ta the abova, Balances and depasits with banks, Investments In bands, debst sacuritias and in units of funds and Darivative financial instruments alsa hava axpasure to credit risk,
Cradit risk an Balancos and deposits with banks Is considered to ba insigniTicant,

418, Uguidity Risk

Liquidity risk refars to the risk that the Company may not be able to meat its shart-term financial cbligations. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sulfieient cash and markatable securitios
and by having sccess 1o funding through an adequate amount of eredit lines. Further, The Company has wall defined Asset Liability Management (ALM) Framework with an approprlate organizational

structure to regularly monitor and manags maturity profiles of financial assets and fNaanclal Habiiities Including debt financing plans, cash and cash equivalent instrumants 1o ensure liguidity. Tha Camparny
seaks Lo maintain flaxibility In funding mix by way of sourcing the funds through money markets, debt markats and banks to meet its business and liquidity requiremants.

The following table shews the maturlty profile of Finandial labllites:

(Zin Mo}
As at 31st March 2019
Financial llabllities Total Lass than 1 months 1 monthsto 6 moenths | 6 months ta 1year Betwaan 1 to 5 years S years and abova
Derivative financial Instruments 2,516.09 : . 3109 2,006.79 178.21
|Tradu Payables 18.09 18.03 - x N Z
Deb! ritles 39,732.69 2,067.92 288157 5,585.80 132,113.57 16,083.81
Debt Securities) 1518691 10,808.51 2.326.92 1,971.48 . -
570134 p 5 . 4,201.34 1,500.00
2,690.05 52043 442,26 436.89 1,043.32 247.15
65,845.17 13,494.95 5,650.75 9,325.26 15,365.02 18,009.19
(®in pan)
A3 ot B3t March 2018 _
Financlal Habilities Total Less than 1 months im io 6 months |6 monthsto1year [Betweenito’years S years and above
Derlvative financ(al instrimants 814.35 - - = 814.25 -
Trade Poyables 4.29 94,30 - . - =
Debt Securities 18,562.29 150.00 | 1,549.00 - 8,302.19 B,561.10
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 41,998 54 12,796.02 29,202 52 - = -
Subardinated Liabiities 5,617.98

- - - 3,095.00 2,522.98
Other financial liakilities 1,399.65 77.06 21135 - 73817 373.07
Total

62,487.00 13,117.38 30,962.67 - 13,949.61 11457.15
X in Mn|
A3 at 15t April 2017
Flnanclal liabilities Total Less than 1 months 1 months to § months |6 months to 1ycar [Betwaen 11 5 years 5 years and abav
Derivative financlal instruminty 254.02 - - 10.81 2431 =
Trade Payables 29.26 213.36 . - - :
Dabt Sacurities 17,838.60 : 1,015.50 1,626.10 3,032.30 12,164,70
30,009.05 5.471.51 24,587.54 - E =
4,435.00 - - . = 4,435.00
52049 3110 72.88 120.84 170.75 12493 |
53,286.42 573187 25 625.92 1,757,715 3,446.26 16,724.62 |

41C. Market Risk

Market rizk s the risk of any lass in future earnings, In reallzable fair values or in futuras cash flows that may result from a changa in the price of a financlal Instrument as axplained below:
41€.1 Currency Risk

The Campany does not have any transactions in foralgn currency and hence It ls nat expased ta Foralgn currancy risk,
41C.2 Interest rate risk

The Company has cansidered interest rate risk on financial assets and liabiiities aecauntad for on amortised cost basis,
The Company's axpasura te chinges In Interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s sutstanding floating rate debt Included in borrowings/debt sacurities,

Tha carrying ameunt of floating rate liabilities and related intorast rate sensitivity |s as below:

Particulars As at 31st March 2019]  As at 31st March 2018]
Floating Rate Liabilities (Dnbl!uncurlﬂ“ and
orrawings) 4,906.61 105.89
A hypathetical 0.25% shift in underlying benchmark rotes will have the below Impact :
[ In Mn
2017-18
- P 2018-19
Increase of 0.25% [7.98) {017}
Dacraase of 0.25% 7.98 0.17

Tha laans arlsing from lending operations generally provida for raset of the Interest rates based on Its Prima landing Rate (PLR). The Company alms ta reset PLA on Its loan book on the basls of, intar-alis,
actualized /expactad changa In [ts overall borrowing costs. This enables the Company to mitigate interest risk on revisian/ rapricing of Interest boaring liabllities. As such the Campany does not carry any
Intarest rate risk on account of the abave. As required under applicable accounting standard, impact of hypathatical change in PLR on Its lsan baoks by 0.25% would be as fallows:

(% in Mn!
Particulars |__Asat3ist March 2010] __ As at 3ist March 2018 As at 15t April 2017
Loans ] 49,107.60 | 68,341 30 36,648.91

T in Mn
impact on Profit an a1 TS
Increase of 0.25% 79.87 111,15

(79.87) {111.15)

p
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Notes forming part of Financlal 5tat

t5 far the Year ended March 31,2019
Note 41. Disclosure Pursuant to Ind AS 107 "Financial Instrumants: Disclosuras”

A1C3. Other Price Risk

Other price rlik is talated to the change in market reference price of the derivative financial Instrumants, Inviestments and debt securities which are fair valued and expases the Company to price risks.
The carrying amaunt of financial assets and liabilities subject to

rice risk [s as balow: & inMn)
Partlculars As ot 315t March 2019 As at 31st March 2008 As at 1st April 2017
Financlal Assots
Derivativa finanelal Inst 1] 0260.95 _lg_ 5 10.77
Investments 29,393.73 6,405.96 19,457.50
30,354.68 6,455.71 13,468.27
Finaneial Uabilities
Darivative financial inslruments ,516.09 814.25 251.02
Dabt itl 15,353.04 8,561.10 12,164.70
17,869.13 9,375.35 12,418.72
Balow Is the sensitivity analysls for the year :
(T in Mn)
2018-18 2017-18
42.88 3112
42.89 31.12
(42.89) (3113
(42.89) (31.13)
41D.Capital Managamant
Tha Company's eapltal manag nt i3 Intended to create value for shareholders. The assessment of Capital leval and requirements are assessed having regard to long-and shart tarm strategies of the

Company and regulatery capital requirements of its busingsses and constituent entities, The Company malntalns at all imes sufficlent capital comprisiag both of Tler | and Tier If capital as roquirad under

the prudantial norms proseribed by the Reserve Bank of Indla. Capital adequacy as on Mar 31, 2019 was 32.78% comprising of Tler | was 20.06% and Tier || was 4.12% |please refer te Mote 1. Disclosure as
required under Annexure X1V of RBI Directions)

41E_ Calegary Wise Classification for applicable Financlal Assels and Uabilities I

p

R
As at 31st March 2013
easured at falr value
Sr No. Particulars through aiher
Measura at amaorised Measured at fair value | comprehensive Income
cost through profit or loss{P/t} (ocy Tatal
Finandal Assets
a Cash and cash equivalents 362,58 2 . 362,58
bj Bank balance other than (a] above B - - B
() Dativative fnancisl Inslruments = 960,95 - 960.95
(d) |Racalvables - - = =
{i) Trade recaivables 280 = 2.90
{ii) Other recelvables 3,775.35 £ . 3,775.35
{e) Loans 50,162.26 - - 50,162.26
n Invastmeanis £ 39,393.73 x 29,393.73
{a) Othar financial asiets 331.67 == = 331.67
Total = 51,634.76 30,354.68 - 84,980.44
Financlal Uabilitles
a3 Derivative financlal instruments - 2,516.09 - 2,516.09 |
(b Payablas .
{l)Trado payablas -
(1) 1otal eutstanding dues of micro
anturgllsos and small antarprisos - - = =
() tatal eutstanding dues of ereditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 18,08 - . 18.09 |
(3] Dabt sacutities 24,379.65 15,353.04 4 39'131.55
(d) __[Barrowings (ather than debt securities) 15,186.91 . - 15,186.91
fn{ ruhnrdinnlnd liabilitles 570134 . - 570184
Other financial labilitie: 2,600.05 3 = 2,690.05
Total 47,976.04 17,869.13 = 65,845.17
(% In Mn
As at 315t March 2018
Measurad ot falr value
SriNo. Particulars through other
Measure at amaorised Measured at falrvalue | comprahensive income
cost through profit or loss(P/L) o) Total
Financial Astets
(a} Cash and cash equivalents 379.40 - - 379.40 |
) Bank balanée other than (a) above 1,266.60 - - 1,266.60
[C] 'Dulnrlv- financisl instruments - 49.75 - 45.75
{d) Racalvablos - B = -
(1) Trade recelvablos 5.59 - - 5.50
{i) Other receivables - - . s
(e] Loans 7243531 : - = 7243531
{n iln\mﬂmanu = 640596 - B,405.96
]ﬂ] Other financial assely 47.51 = = 47.51
Taotal 74,134.41 6,455.71 - 40,550.12
Financial Labllities
!n] Derlvative financlal Instrumants - lm._g& a B14.15
b Payables -
1) Trade pavables R
{l) tatal autstanding dues of micre
enterprises and small enterprises - - -
() total sutstanding duas af craditars ather
|ll1u|1 mitro enterprises and small enterprises 84.29 - - 94.39 |
(5] Dabl securities 10,001.19 8,561.10 - 13'562.19
(d) Bariowings (sthar than dabt securities) 41,998.54 = - 41,998.54
) Subardinated llabilities 5,617.98 . - 5,617.58
l— m_" har finaneial labliities 1,99.65 o ¥ % 1,399.65
sV, I%gi‘. 58,111.65 5,375.35 = 68,487.00
T In Mn)




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 41, Disclosure Pursuant to Ind AS 107 “Finsneiol Instruments: Disclosures”
As at 1st April 2017
Measured at fair valug
S No. Particulars through ether
at Ised M d at fair value | comprehensiva Incomo
cost through profit or loss(P/L! [(e])] Tatal
Financial Assets
) Cash and cash equivalents 4,781,68 - - 4,741.68
|__{b)__[Bank balance athar than {a) above 2,518.97 - - 2,518.87
c) Derivative financial instrumants = 1077 E. 10.77
| (d Recelvables = - . -
{1} Trade recelvables 0.49 - = 0.49
\l} Other receivables B56.67 - - B56.67
{a) Laans 36,481.13 : - 36,481.13
{f Invastmants - 15,457.50 - 19,457.50 |
Othar financial assets 22.28 £ - 22,28
Tatal 44,661.22 19,468.27 - 64,129.49 |
Inancial Uabliities
3 Derivative financial Instrumonts - 254,02 - 354.02
(B) Payables i
(Trade payables .
{1} total outstanding duas af micra
antarprises and small enterprises - z i =
{li) total outstanding dues of creditors athar
than miero anterprises snd small enterprises 239.26 - - 22926
(=] Dabt securities S,G“.’!.B_D 17,164.70 . 17,838.60
{d) Hurruwlnﬁs |nthnr1han dnhs snguul:ln] 30,00_9_05 = 3 30,009.05
) Subordinated labilities 4,435.00 . - 4,435 00
';'i lmhtr financial linbilitles 52040 . - 520.49
Total 40,867.70 12,418.72 - 53,286.42

A1E.1, Falr values of financial Instruments

41F. 1a. Fi

The Company measuras fair vahies using the fallowing fair value hizrarchy, which rullects the significance of the Inputs used In making the maasurements.

= Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) In active markats for [dentical Instruments. This include NAV of the schemes of mutual funds,

—Level 2: Inputs other thin quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are ebsarvable aither dirsetly (e, as prices) or Indiroctly (1.6, darivad from prices). This categary Includas Tnstruments valued using:
auoted market prices In active markets for similar instruments; quated prices for Identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered lass than active; of ather valuation technigues In which all
significant inputs are directly or Indirectly abservable from market data.

= Level 3 Inputs that are unobservablo. This catagory Includes all instruments for which the valuation technique Includes inputs that are not observable and the unebsarvable Inputs have a signifleant affect
on the Instrumant’s valuation, This eategory Includes instruments that are valued basod on queted prices for similar instruments for whick sighificant unobservable adjust ts or pilons are req i
to reflect differences between the Instruments.

The Company uses widaly recognised valuatian methods to determine the fair value af comimon and simpla financlal instruments, such as interest rate swaps, optins, which use only abisrvable market data

s far a3 practicable. Observable prices or model inputs are usually avallable in the market for listed debt and equity securitles, exchange-traded derivatives and simpla OTC derivatives such as Intarast rats
swaps.

d at fair value = Fair valua hiararchy

The following table analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the reparting date, by the laval in the fair value hierarchy Inta which the falr vilue measurement is categorised,

That amounts are based on the values recognised in the statement of finanelal pasition, The fair values include any deferrad diffarencas batween the transaction price and the falr value on initial racoghitlan
when the fair value Is based on a valuation technigua that uses unobservable Inputs.

{Z in Mn)
Racurring fair value measurements at 31.03.2019
Financlal instruments maasured at falr value Level 3 Leval 2 Level 3 Total
728.90 : - 73670
- 13,007.84 - 13,007.84
- 10,352.03 - 1035203
Invastmonts In allernate investment funds * - - 4,722.11 4,732.11
585.05 - = 585,05
. 950.95 . 960.95
131175 2832082 471211 30,354,638 |
- 15,353.04 - 15,353.04
Darivative flghﬁltl llabilites = 2,516.09 = 2,516.09
Total Liabiliti - 17,869.13 = 17,869.13

* The fair values of these investments are detormined basis tha NAY published by the funds.




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE IMITED
Notes forming part of Financlal Statements for tha Yoar ended March 31, 2018

Note 41. Disclosure Pursuant to ind AS 107 "Financlal Instrumants: Disclosures”

(T in Mn)
Racurring fair value measurements at 31,03.2018
Financlal Instruments measured at falr value Lovel 1 Level 2 Loval 3 Tatal
Financlal Assgts |
Investmants In mutual funds 1,061.77 - - 1,061.77 |
Investments In debl sacuritios . 3,360.37 - 1,360.37
Invesiments in alternate investment funds * - - 618.67 G18.67
Investmants in others 1.365.15% = - 1,365.15
Dorvativad financial asiats = 49.75 L 4875
Total Assets 2,426.92 3,410.12 618,67 5,455.71
Financial Liabilities
Bonds/ debentures s R.561.10 - 8.561.10
Derivative financlal liabilites . A14.25 - u14.25
Total Linbilitles = 937535 - 9,375.38
* The fair valuos of thesn invastiments are determined basls the NAY published by the funds.
Tin Mn]
Recurring falr value measurements at 01.04.2017
Financlal instrurnents measured at fair valug Level1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
Financlal Assets
Investmants In mutual funds 590.50 : - 590.50
|Invastments in debl securities £ 10,583.95 - 10,583.95
Invastmants in aquity Shares 16.83 . 5 16.83
Investments In alternatn lnvestment funds ® - - 8,266.22 B,266.23
Dervatives financial assets . 1077 - 10.77
Total Assets 607.33 10,584.72 B,266.22 19,468.27
Financial Liabllities
anndu debanturas - 12,164.70 - 12,164.70
Darlvativa financiil liabllites - 254.02 - 254,07
Total Uabllities - 12,418.72 - 12,418.72
* Tha falr values of these investments ara daterminad basii the NAY published by the funds.
Reconcillation af Level3 fair value measurements (& In Mn)
Particulars As at 31st March ID!.BI As at 3151 Mll'lh-'l-ﬂl.l As at 31st March 2017
E18.67 8,266,227 6322.10
{11.85) 165.85 316:_5'3‘_
7411.08 12,535.53 37,945.80
{3,296.64) (20,348.93) {36,318 31)
4.7%2"..11 618.67 B,766.22
41l 1b Fair value of financlal assets and financlal liabllities measured at amortised cost (% in Min)
|Financial Assets and liabilitles which are As at 31st March 2019 As at 315t March 2018 As at st April 2017
measurad at amenlised cost for which fair
values are disclosed Carrying Value Falr Value Carrying Value Falr Value Carrylng Value Fair Valug
Flnanclal Asiets = ——
Cash and cash equivalents 362.58 362.58 379.40 37940 4,781.68 4,781.68
Bank balance other than above - . 1,266.60 1,266.60 2,51R.97 251897
'Rncnhﬂhln: T
(i) Trade recolivabilus 2.80 290 559 559 0.43 043
(i} Other recetvahles 3,775.35 3,775.35 - - 856.67 B56.67
Loans 50,162.26 50,162.26 7243531 7243531 36,481.13 3648113
Dthgrﬂnumlaumu 331.67 331.67 47.51 47.51 22,28 22.28 |
Finandial Liabilitiss
|| Trade payablas
(I} tetal sutstanding dues of micro
enfterprises and small entorprises . - - . - o
{11} total cutstanding dues of craditors ather
than miére unlurgrl:us and small anterprisas }_3'92 18.09 94.29 M.!_B 220.26 329.36
Dabt sacurites 24.379.65 24,284.55 10,001.19 9,939.53 5,673.90 5.712.54
rrowings (other than debt securities) 15,186.01 1518591 41,998.54 41,938.54 30,009.05 30,009.05
subordinated liabilities 5,701,34 ,694.12 5,617.98 5,586.63 4,435.00 4,440.84 |
Other financial Vabllities 2,690.05 2,690.05 1,309.65 1,399.65 520.49 52049

Financlal assels measured at amortised cost:
The carrying amaunts of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances trade and other raceivables, loans and other financial sssets are considered to bis the sarme a8 their falr valuss dus 16 their short
torm nature,

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

The carrying ameounts of trade payables and other financial ilabilitios are considered to be the same as their fair values due 1o thelr shart term natura, The earrying amounts of borrawings with Moating rate
of Interest are considered ta be closa ta the fair value,

{€1n Mn|
Financlal Assets and lla es which ara As at at 31.03.2019
at amortised cost for which fair Loval 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
- 24,284 55 - 24,284 55
Subordinated lahilitles = 5.094.12 - §,694.12
l‘: In Mn|
rﬁm\ntlnl Assets and lTabilities which are As atat31.03.2018 .
measured at amuertised cost for which fair Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Liabilities
Dabt sacurities - 9,939.53 . 9,939.53
Subordlnamd abliitlas - 5 586.63 - 558663
_ Tin M.L‘JI
Finandal Assats and llabilities which are A at 8t 1.04.2017
maasured ot amortlsed cost for which fair Levell Leval 2 Level3 Total
Finantial Uabilities
o 5712.54 = 5,712.54
= 4,440.B4 3 44084

2
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Note 42. Subsequent Events

There were no subsequent events from the date of financial statements till the date of adoption of accounts

Note 43. Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issuance by the Board of Directors on May 13 , 2019

Far and on behalf of Board of Directors

,. [t
i

Hll:unshu Jain

Whole Time Director Norexecutive Director
and Chief Executive Officer
(DIN: 02052409) (DIN: 03231090)

Place : Mumbai M]h]r Nanavati
Date : May 13th, 2019 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary




IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

These disclosures have been prepared as per audited books of accounts maintained as per Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, adjusted for compliance with Income Recognition and Asset Classification

guidelines issued by RBI and RBI master directions DNBS.PPD.02/66.15.001/2016-17 dated 29 September 2016
as amended from time to time.

Note 1. Disclosure as required under Annexure XIV of RBI Directions:

i.  Capital Adequacy Ratio:

(X in Crore)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 | As at March 31, 2018
CRAR (%) 32.78 21.92
CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) 28.66 17.02
CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 4.12 4.90
Amount of subordinate debt raised as Tier- Il capital 420.13 411.80
Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt Instruments. 150.00 150.00
ii. Disclosure of Investments: (X in Crore)
Sr. No. Particulars As at March 31, 2019 | As at March 31, 2018
(1) Value of Investments
(i) Gross value of Investments
(a) In India 2,878.24 633.99
(b) Outside India - -
(ii) Provision for depreciation/diminution
(a) In India 7.16 19.17
(b) Outside India . 5
(iii) Net value of Investments
(a) In India 2,871.08 614.82
(b) Outside India - -
(2) Movement of provisions held towards
depreciation on investments.
(i) Opening Balance 19.17 16.72
(ii) Add: Pravision made during the year 6.14 18.17
(iii) Less: Write -off / write-back of excess 18.15 15.72
provisions during the year
(iv) Closing balance 7.16 19.17
iii. Derivatives
a) Interest rate swap (T in Crore)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(i) The notional principal of swap 1,100.00 -
agreements
(i) Losses which would be incurred if
counterparties failed to fulfill their
obligations under the agreements - -
Collateral required by the applicable NBFC /»-"'F”ﬁ
upon entering into swaps - A \>\\g #
Concentration of credit risk arising from 1
the swaps - -
The fair value of the swap book (4.68) -

b) The company has not entered into any Exchange Traded Interest Rate derivatives

P



IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

c) Disclosure of Risk Exposure in Derivatives

Mark To Market (MTM) valuation of the derivatives are recorded in accordance with principles enunciated in
Accounting Standard 30 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and Guidance Note on
Accounting for Derivative Contracts issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. MTM Valuation
is determined based on quotes available from exchange/ counter party/ rating agency.
The Company undertakes transactions in derivative products in the role of a user with counter parties. The
Company deals in derivatives for balance sheet management i.e. hedging its liabilities and assets exposure.
Dealing in derivatives is carried out by the treasury department of the Company. The department is also

responsible for assessing counterparty and market risk. The Company has put in place policy framework
which covers various aspects of derivative exposures.

c) Options Contract Outstanding as at 31st March 2019:

(T in Crore)

Option Contract As at March 31, 2019 | As at March 31, 2018
Total Premium Carried forward on Buy Option (Net of 83.33
Provisions) 4.98
Total Premium Carried forward on Sell Option (Net of 9.05
Provisions) i
Net Receivable/(Payable) 79.28 4.98
iv. The Company has not securitised any of its exposures during the year (Previous Year: Nil).
v. Asset Liability management maturity pattern- March 31, 2019: (X in Crore)
Upto Dvert: Ove:: Ove:: Ove: : Dver; Dvers.?: Soer
mon maoanths montns montns ear ear ver
Rartculars A0 upto 2 upto 3 Zupto6 | &uptol zptu 3 :pto 5 years Toral
days
months months months year year year
Depaosits - - i = = - = - -
Advances * 379.46 299.26 217.30 826.98 | 1,87298 | 1,330.83 g - | 4,926.81
Investments 1,018.85 72.16 200.82 216.10 210.63 65.54 -|{ 1,086.98 | 2,871.08
Borrowings 1,295.64 45,53 136.96 338.36 888.84 766.78 | 1,051.58 | 1,776.27 | 6,299.96
Fareign currency
assets = = n - = & % S
Fareign currency
liabilities - F - » - - - -

Note: In computing the above information, certain estimates, assumptions and adjustments have been made
by the Management and relied upon by the auditors.

* Advances include Intercorporate Deposits of Rs 58.21 crore

Asset Liability management maturity pattern- March 31, 2018:

(T in Crore)
Upto Overt; Ove:'::! Dve:: Dve:; : Over ; QOver ; -
mon months months months ear year ver
Papticulars 30/31 upto 2 upto 3 &upto6 | & uptol ‘I{Iptﬂ 3 upto 5 years Total
days
months months months year year year
Deposits = - - 5 = = - ~ =
Advances * 1,244.16 718.89 269.08 998.60 | 2,062.62 | 1,596.64 - - | 6,890.99
Investments 247.07 155.17 136.51 - - 70.07 - 6.00 614.82
Borrowings 1,294.60 | 1,169.50 1,766.21 139.44 - 682.14 | 527.65 | 1,108.41 6,687.95
Foreign currency
assets - = - - 2 - = - -
Fareign currency
f.—':":_n::- = - = 2
£

oy
1
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@

=
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IIFL WEALTH FINANCE LIMITED

vi. Exposure to Real Estate Sector:

(T in Crore)

5r. no. Category

March 31, 2019

March 31,
2018

a ) Direct Exposure

(i) Residential Mortgages-

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is
or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented

272.22

170.47

(ii)

Commercial Real Estate-

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office

buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial premises, multi-
family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises,
industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition,

development and construction, etc.). Exposure shall also include
non-fund based limits

132.07

153.60

Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other
securitized exposures-

(iii)

a. Residential

b. Commercial Real Estate

b ) Indirect Exposure

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector *

404.29

324.07

* The above does not include aggregate accrued interest of € 15.04 crore (P.Y T 8,70 crore)

vii. Exposure to Capital Market:

(T in Crore)

Sr. no. Category

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Direct investment in equity shares, convertibles bonds,
(i) | convertible debentures and unit of equity-oriented mutual funds
the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

10.31

Advances against shares/bonds/debentures or other securities or
on clean basis to individuals for investments in shares ( including
IPOs/ ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and unit
of equity-oriented mutual funds;

(ii)

790.79

1,335.33

Advances for any other purpose where shares or convertible
bonds or convertibles debentures or units of equity-oriented
mutual funds are taken as primary security;

(iii)

2,774.20

3,585.66

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the
collateral security of shares or convertible bands or convertible
debentures or unit or equity-oriented mutual funds i.e. where the
primary security other than shares/ convertible bonds /
convertible debentures / units of equity-oriented mutual funds
does not fully cover the advances;

(iv)

Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees
issued on behalf of stockbroker and market makers;

(v)

50.36

110.42

Loan sanctioned to corporates against the security of
shares/bonds/debentures or other securities or on clean basis for
meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies
in anticipation of raising resources;

L (vi)

--\"'r Ny

(Vi)
ALY | o

Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/issues;

All exposures to Venture Capital Funds ( both registered and

I T‘L-.L s
Vi“e;l unregistered)**

oTotal Exposure to Capital Market *

3,615.35

5,041.72

" * The above does not include aggregate accrued interest of ¥ 94.49 crore (P.Y ¥ 91.03 crore)
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** The above does not include Investments in Alternate Investment fund of ¥ 471.37 crore (P.Y ¥ 60.66 crore)

viii. Details of financing of parent company products.
There is no financing of parent company products during the current year

ix. As at the respective month ends during the year, the Company has not exceeded the prudential exposure
limits in respect of Single Borrower and Group Borrower.

X. Unsecured Advances
The Company has not obtained any intangible security towards the unsecured advances.

xi. Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

The company holds the ‘Corporate Agency License for Composite Insurance’ obtained from Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI) during the financial year 2016-17.

xii. Details of penalties imposed by RBI or other regulators:

a. No penalty has been imposed during the year.

xiii. Details of Credit Ratings:

A) Ratings assigned by Credit Rating Agencies: (T in Crore)
Rating Agency Product Amount Rating Assigned
ICRA Commercial Papers 3,000 Al + (A one Plus)
ICRA NCD 1,000 AA
ICRA PP-MLD 4,050 AA
ICRA PP-MLD 300 AA
ICRA PP-MLD unsecured 200 AA
ICRA Unsecured NCD 650 AA
ICRA Commercial Papers 5,500 Al + (A one Plus)
CRISIL IPO Financing 5,000 CRISIL A1+
CRISIL Commercial Papers 5,500 CRISIL A1+
CARE PP-MLD 100 AA
xiv. Directors Remuneration (% in Crore)
Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018
Commission and sitting fees 0.26 0.31
Total 0.26 0.31
xv. Details of Provisions and Contingencies : (T in Crore)
Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018
Provision for depreciation on Investment (12.01) 2.45
Provision towards NPA - -
Other Provision and Contingencies:
Bad debts written off/(back) - -
Mark to Market on derivative contracts 10.86 (3.70)
Provision for standard assets (8.05) 14 87
Total (9.20) 13.62
Provision made towards Income Tax 90.65 50.79

xvi. Draw Down from Reserves :
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xvii. Details of concentration of deposits, advances, exposures & NPA:

a) Concentration of Advances:

(¥ in Crore)
Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers * 2095.25 2,534.09
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total
advances 41.66% 34.84%
* Advances includes Interest accrued on loans
b) Concentration of Exposures: (X in Crore)
Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018
Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers * 2099.25 2,534.09
Percentage of exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers
to total exposure 41.66% 34.84%
* Exposure comprises of only Loans and Interest accrued on loans
c¢) Concentration of NPAs:
The Company does not have any NPAs as at 31* March 2019 (Previous Year Nil).
d) Details of Sector wise NPA:
The Company does not have any NPAs as at 31* March 2019 (Previous Year Nil).
xviii. Movement of NPAs:
The Company does not have any NPAs as at 31* March 2019 (Previous Year Nil).
Xix. Disclosure of Complaints:
Sr. No. | Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018

i Number of complaints pending at the beginning of year

ii Number of complaints received during the year

iii Number of complaints redressed during the year

iv Number of complaints pending at the end of the year

Customer complaints details as given above are as identified by the Company and relied upon by the auditors

xx. The Company does not have any Overseas Assets

xxi. The Company has not sponsored any Off-Balance Sheet SPVs

Note 2. Disclosure of restructured accounts:
The Company does not have any Restructured Accounts

Note 3. Asset classification:

(T in Crore)

Particulars Outstanding Balance Provision
5,039.03 19.64
Standard Assets (7,273.89) (27.70)
Sub-Standard Assets () (-)
Doubtful Assets () (-)
Loss Assets (-) ()
=T 5,039.03 19.64
7 ,ﬁ{L‘\\ (7,273.89) (27.70)
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Note:

a. In terms of RBI circular a general provision of ¥ 19.64 crore (Previous Year ¥ 27.70 crore) has been made at
0.40 % (Previous year @ 0.40%)of the standard assets.

b. Figures in bracket represent previous year’s figures.

Note 4. Particulars as per paragraph 18 of RBI Directions:
Liabilities Side

1. Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of interest accrued there on but not paid:

Current year (T in Crore)
Particulars Amount outstanding|Amount overdue
{(a)Debentures:

Secured 4,371.39 -

Unsecured (Other than falling within the meaning of public 641.89 -

deposits)
(b)Deferred credits 4 g
(c) Loans from Banks 150.00 -
(d)Inter—corporate loans and borrowings 1.20 -
(e)Commercial Paper 382.68 -
(f) Public Deposits - -
(g)Other Loans(CBLO) 084.81 -

Previous year (T in Crore)
Particulars Amount outstanding |Amount overdue
(a)Debentures:;

Secured 2,030.53 -

Unsecured (Other than falling within the meaning of public 593.83 -

deposits)
(b)Deferred credits - -
(c)Term loans - -
(d)Inter—corporate loans and borrowings : i
(e)Commercial Paper 4,189.26 -
(f) Public Deposits - -
(g)Other Loans(Overdraft) 10.59 -

2. Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid) :

Current year (X in Crore)
Particulars lAmount Outstanding |Amount overdue
a) Inthe form of Unsecured debentures - -
b) Inthe form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures
where there is a shortfall in the value of security }
c) Other public deposits 3 :
Previous year (T in Crore)
| Particulars : mount Outstanding |[Amount overdue
ﬁ‘:‘s“ﬂ?ﬂ‘}\ln the form of Unsecured debentures —_ - -
£ BU‘E! the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures %ﬁ‘)—‘ﬁ‘”‘?@
— o = = o -4 .
= umﬂb Where there is a shortfall in the value of security & \*—3
ug} *_EI" = / h
* 5
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Particulars

lAmount Outstanding

Amount overdue

a) Inthe form of Unsecured debentures

c) Other public deposits

Assets Side

3. Break - up of Loans and Advances including Bills Receivables [Other than included in (4) below]:

(Z in Crore)

Amount Outstanding

2018-2019

2017-2018

Assets Side:

(a) Secured

4,775.54

6,758.57

(b) Unsecured

263.49

515.32

Break- up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities:

(¥ in Crore)

Particulars

2018-2019

2017-2018

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors

(a) Financial lease

(b) Operating lease

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors

(a) Assets on hire

(b) Repossessed Assets

(iii) Other Loans counting towards AFC activities

(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed

(b) Loans other than (a) above

5. Break-up of Investments:

(% in Crore)

Particulars

2018-2019

2017-2018

urrent Investments :

1 Quoted :

(i) Shares:

(a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

48.29

242.14

(i) Units of mutual funds

72.16

105.44

(iv) Government Securities

1,018.85

(v) Others

58.51

136.51

2 Unguoted:

(i) Shares:

(a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Units of Alternate Investment Funds

LDHE Term Investments :

1 Quoted :

(i) Shares:

5 +(a). Equity

() Rreference
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(ii) Debentures and Bonds

752.69

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify)

2 Unguoted:

(i) Shares:

(a) Equity

(b) Preference

(i) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Units of Alternate Investment Funds

6. Borrower Group-wise Classification of all assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:

Current Year

(T in Crore)

Category

Amount Net of Provisions

Secured | Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties

a) Subsidiaries

b) Companies in the same group

c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

4,775.54 263.49 | 5,039.03

Total

4,775.54 263.49 | 5,039.03

Previous Year

(X in Crore)

Category

Amount Net of Provisions

Secured | Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties

a) Subsidiaries

b) Companies in the same group

c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

6,758.57

515.32 | 7,273.89

Total

6,758.57

515.32 | 7,273.89

7. Investor group wise classification of all investments (Current and Long Term) in shares and securities {Both

quoted and unquoted):

Current Year (T in Crore)
Market Value/ Book value
breakup or fair (Net of

Category value or NAV provisions)
1 Related Parties
a) Subsidiaries - -
b) Companies in the same group - -
c) Other related parties - -
2 Other than related parties 2,901.97 2,871.08
Tatal 2,901.97 2,871.08
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Previous year

(< in Crore)
Market Value/ Book value
breakup or fair (Net of
Category value or NAV provisions)
1 Related Parties
a) Subsidiaries - =
b) Companies in the same group - -
c) Other related parties . B
2 Other than related parties 617.24 614.82
Total 617.24 614.82
8. Other information: (X in Crore)
Particulars

2018-2019 2017-2018

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
a) Related parties
b) Other than related parties
(i) Net Non-Performing Assets
a) Related parties
b) Other than related parties
(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Note 5. Previous year’s figures are regrouped, reclassified and rearranged wherever considered necessary to
confirm to current year’s presentation.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Himanshﬁ Jain

Whole Time Director Non-executive
and Chief Executive Officer  Director
(DIN: 02052409) (DIN: 03231090)

Place : Mumbai Mihir Nanavati ”{5:: j.Gujaran

Dated : 13" May 2019 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary




